
Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 14 November 2019 at 4.00 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: C J T H Brewis, A M Newton, P A Redgate, J L Reynolds (Vice-Chairman), 
M D Seymour, E J Sneath (Chairman) and S C Walsh

Quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date: 6 November 2019

Public Document Pack

Page 1



AGENDA

TIME

4.00 pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

4.01 pm 2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

4.02 pm 3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 25 July 2019 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 5 - 
8)

4.05 pm 4. Statement of accounts and audit report - Update report 
by Ernst Young

(To 
Follow)

4.15 pm 5. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity - To examine 
the progress made between 1 April 2019 and 4 
November 2019 in relation to the completion of the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 (report of the 
Head of Internal Audit for SHDC enclosed).

(Pages 9 - 
40)

4.30 pm 6. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations - 
To provide members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal 
Audit recommendations as at 4 November 2019 (report 
of the Head of Internal Audit for SHDC enclosed).

(Pages 41 
- 52)

4.40 pm 7. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment - 
The Governance and Audit Committee will assess itself 
against the enclosed self-assessment of good practice 
(the Internal Audit Manager will facilitate this process).

(Pages 53 
- 56)

4.55 pm 8. Mid term Treasury Report 2019/20 - To provide an 
update of the treasury management position of the 
Council as at 30 September 2019 (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer) 
enclosed).

(Pages 57 
- 74)

5.10 pm 9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - 
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance enclosed).

(Pages 75 
- 80)

5.15 pm 10. Quarter 2 2019-20 Risk Report - To provide an update to 
the Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified 
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director, Strategy 
and Governance enclosed).

(Pages 81 
- 114)

Page 2



Please note that Appendix 2 associated with this 
report is not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 
(Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information)) in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, 
and is therefore attached to this agenda as item 13.

5.20 pm 11. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.

5.21 pm 12. To consider resolving that, under Section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

5.22 pm 13. Quarter 2 2019-20 Risk Report - (Appendix 2 enclosed). (Pages 
115 - 116)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 12 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 25 July 2019 
at 4.30 pm.

PRESENT

E J Sneath (Chairman)
J L Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

A M Newton
P A Redgate

M D Seymour
S C Walsh

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis  

In Attendance:  The Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), the Strategic 
Finance and Compliance Manager, the Head of Finance (PSPS), the Corporate 
Innovation, Change and Performance Manager, the Democratic Services Officer and 
Councillor J L King.

Action By
11. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

With regard to agenda items 6 and  9 ‘Quarter 1 2019-20 Risk 
Report’, the following Declarations of Interest were received:

 Councillors Sneath and Newton informed the Committee that 
they did not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, but in the 
interest of transparency, they wished to declare that they were 
Lincolnshire County Councillors.

 Councillor Newton informed the Committee that she did not 
have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, but in the interest of 
transparency, she wished to declare that she was a PSPS 
Board member.  

12. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 6 June 2019 were signed by the Chairman as 
a correct record.

It was agreed that all future meetings of the Governance and 
Audit Committee commence at 4pm.

RB, LE, 
CM 

13. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND UNAUDITED 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) which updated the Committee 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 13 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
25 July 2019

of events since the unaudited Financial Statements were 
presented.  The following information was noted:

 The external auditor, Ernst Young had confirmed that their 
audit would not be  completed by 31 July 2019, due to serious 
resourcing issues.  Their timetable was now to start SHDC’s 
audit on 23 September 2019, and complete on 18 October 
2019.  This delay would necessitate the delay of the planned 
Governance and Audit Committee meeting on 24 October 
2019 – the meeting would now take place on 14 November 
2019, and Ernst Young would present their audit findings to 
this meeting.

 Members and officers felt that the delay was not acceptable, 
and the Authority had made strong representations to Ernst 
Young however, there was nothing that could be done as they 
did not have the resources to complete the audit.  The contract 
with Ernst Young was a national contract and SHDC was not 
the only Authority experiencing delays.  The national contract 
had been awarded in 2018.  Ernst Young had had a significant 
increase in work, as a result of contracts awarded.  Other 
contractors were also having similar problems.  There was no 
consequence arising from the audit not being completed on 
time however, SHDC had presented its required information, 
and Ernst Young now needed to resource and complete its 
work.

 With regard to the accounts and audit regulations, 
consideration was currently being given to changes by the 
government.  Officers expected that the timeline may be 
reviewed.

 Members asked whether there would be a similar risk, going 
into next year.  Officers responded that they would be raising 
the issue with PSAA, who organised the contract, to ascertain 
what they intended to do.  However, it was likely that the same 
problem could arise next year. 

 Members were advised that the accounts presented within the 
report had not changed since they were considered at the last 
meeting of the Committee.  They were however advised of an 
issue relating to pensions, which was as a result of a recent 
Supreme Court judgement.  This had ruled that the 2015 
changes to public sector pensions had discriminated against 
younger employees.  The ruling meant that it was likely that 
the Council pension funds would have to compensate and 
account for payments to ensure that no employee was left out 
of pocket.  The Council’s actuary had advised that there was 
an estimated £212,000 impact on the pension liabilities figures 
in the accounts, although no impact to the Council’s general 
fund.  It had been decided that, due to materiality levels, no 
adjustment be made to the 2018/19 accounts and the Council 

Page 6



- 14 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
25 July 2019

had decided to treat this as a contingent liability.

AGREED:

a) That the update on the Financial Statements 2018/19 be 
noted; 

b) That the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 be approved; 
and

c) That the Governance and Audit Committee meeting, due to be 
held  on 24 October 2019 be moved to 14 November 2019. CM, SK 

14. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager–
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer), which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee.

It was noted that all items that had been due for consideration at 
the meeting on 24 October 2019 be moved to the new meeting 
date of 14 November 2019.

AGREED:

That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted.

15. QUARTER 1 2019-20 RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 
risks.

Appendix 2 to the report was exempt, and it was agreed that the 
report in its entirety be considered with this appendix.

16. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none.

17. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

DECISION:

That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 

Page 7



- 15 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
25 July 2019

the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.

18. QUARTER 1 2019-20 RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 
risks.

The Committee noted the following:

 The issue detailed within the exempt appendix should be 
added to the risk register – it would enable regular review of 
the contract.  Currently, it was not a major risk, but it was 
noteworthy.

 Heat maps were used within the risk register to track progress 
of each individual risk – members requested that an additional 
heat map be added for each risk, showing results from the 
previous quarter, in order that a comparison could be made. 

 Members were pleased with the improvement in staff 
retention.  Officers confirmed that a new HR workforce 
strategy was now in place, and benefits were beginning to be 
seen from it.  

 With regard to the risk ‘failure to effectively implement 
corporate business continuity plan’, members questioned why 
this had not yet been signed off.  Officers responded that this 
issue was to be considered in September, and that the 
outcome would be reported back.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

RB 

RB 

(The meeting ended at 5.00 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 8



Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

To: Governance and Audit Committee 14 November 2019

Author: Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager

Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 1 April 2019 to 4 November 
2019 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2019/20.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the progress of the internal audit plan of work for 2019/20.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 
Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting. 

To comply with the above the report identifies:  
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance measures to date.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The current position in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 
are shown within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 
Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5.



4.2 Financial 

4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan is been delivered within the approved budget for 2019/20.

4.3 Risk Management 

44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533873
Email: fhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Page 10



Page 1 of 29

Eastern Internal Audit Services

South Holland District Council

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Period Covered:1 April 2019 to 4 November 2019 

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District Council

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................2

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ....................2

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ..............................2

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ............................................................3

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES.........................................................................................6

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK...................7

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES..............................................9

Page 11



Page 2 of 29

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the 
internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to 
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any 
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific 
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes: 

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date.

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

2.1 At the meeting on 14 March 2019, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved, 
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since this meeting, there has been the following 
significant changes to the plan: 

Audit description Nature of the change

Accounts Receivable & Income East Lindsey provides assurance over the 
management of key financial controls managed 
by PSPS and results of these reviews feed into 
the Head of Internal Audit's Annual Opinion. Full 
service reviews are also undertaken of each 
area on a cyclical basis. Accounts receivable 
and Income were due to be audited in 2019/20 
as part of cyclical work, however PSPS is 
currently undertaking a finance systems 
upgrade. 

A number of internal audit recommendations 
have been raised regarding the functionality of 
the current financial system – AX in previous 
reviews. We have been provided with updates 
as to the status of this upgrade work and 
propose to carry out detailed testing of these 
areas as part of next years internal audit plan 
when the system will then be implemented.  

Office 365 This audit was deferred from the 2018/19 plan to 
allow both Councils to work on implementation. 
This product has not yet been installed. We are 
receiving updates from the Technology Board in 
relation to implementation and will defer this 
review until this work has been completed. 

Page 12



Page 3 of 29

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the 2019/20 agreed internal audit plan. A total of 
170 days of work has been allocated to Eastern Internal Audit Services (EIAS) to be delivered 
by TIAA ltd. A total of 65 days was also allocated to East Lindsey District Council. 

East Lindsey’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed by Public 
Sector Partnership Services (previously Compass Point Business Services) on behalf of South 
Holland District Council.  The Head of Internal Audit places reliance on the work carried out 
by East Lindsey District Council when concluding on the overall Internal Audit Opinion.  
Progress in relation to delivering the East Lindsey allocated days is provided in Appendix 1.  

3.2 In summary: 

78 days of programmed work has been completed by EIAS, equating to 51% of the (revised) 
Audit Plan for 2019/20. 

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following 
definitions:

Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably 
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the 
time of our review were being consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls 
in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s management of 
risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks.

Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to 
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required 
to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks.

No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or 
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to manage 
risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate 
action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks.

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions:

Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 1 month.

Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 
3 months.

Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken 
within 6 months.

Page 13



Page 4 of 29

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed, 
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance 
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not 
part of the follow up process.

4.4 During the period covered by the report TIAA has issued five final reports:

Audit Assurance P1 P2 P3

Private Sector Housing No Assurance 16 6 6
Section 106 Agreements Reasonable 0 0 4
Strategic Housing Reasonable 0 1 1
Environmental Protection Reasonable 0 0 2
Leisure Reasonable 0 1 1
Subtotal 16 8 14

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies of these 
reports can be requested by Members.

4.5 As can be seen in the table above as a result of these audits 38 recommendations have been 
raised and agreed by management.

In addition, five Operational Effectiveness Matters have been proposed to management for 
consideration.

4.6 A position statement has been issued in IT Strategy. This audit was carried out as a joint piece 
of work with Breckland District Council due to the shared management infrastructure that is in 
place. The objective of the review was to ascertain the Councils’ current position with regards 
to oversight of IT Strategy Management. The key suggested actions and improvements arising 
from this work include:

 Defining and agreeing a formal process for preparing business cases using the existing 
draft Project Request Form template.

 To ensure that the Councils' project/ programme management processes incorporate 
appropriate formal benefits tracking during the life of a project and post-implementation 
reviews. 

 Work with the Corporate Innovation and Performance (CIP) team to establish relevant 
metrics for inclusion into the Councils' "Achievements Documents".

 Agree and implement relevant performance indicators for key systems and processes. 
Ensuring that the IT goals and indicators are captured and reported on, using metrics 
and targets as appropriate.

 Document formal policies and procedures detailing the required structured business 
planning approach, including supporting the process for creating an IT strategic plan.

 Consider combining South Holland and Breckland’s IT and Digital Strategies into a 
single strategy for each Council under a single point of leadership.

 Document a formal IT tactical plan/roadmap that supports the IT strategies.

 Update the IT and Digital Strategies for both Councils to include a version history and 
include details of when changes to the strategies were made, what the changes were 
and when they were formally approved.

Page 14



Page 5 of 29

 Implement a process that enables the identification and prioritisation of IT programmes 
and projects supporting the IT tactical plan using appropriate criteria, including 
expected business benefits.  

 Ensure that appropriate Business Continuity work is undertaken at both Councils. 

4.7 A position statement was also completed in Strategic Enforcement. This audit was carried out 
as a joint piece of work with Breckland District Council. The objective of the review was to 
ascertain each Council’s current position in regard oversight of Strategic Enforcement to 
determine the extent of formal or informal collaboration between services areas where 
enforcement action may cross over, to ensure the process is efficient and to determine the 
effectiveness of management/Member reporting.   

Suggestions for improvement have been suggested and accepted by management. Key 
actions are as follows:

 For the Corporate Enforcement Policy, which is a public facing document, to 
include signposting or links to all service specific enforcement policies, where 
applicable, for ease of access.

 To build on the progress made and introduce formal processes for coordinating all 
aspects of enforcement action, particularly reactive enforcement, that allows all 
services from within the Council to consider complaints on a case by case basis.  

 When considering the above, the Council to also involve other key services from 
the community, in addition to the Police, such as the Fire Service, Parish Councils 
etc. which may be useful sources of intelligence in terms of potential enforcement 
related matters which the Council may or may not already be aware of. 

 When addressing the above, the Council to put in place a structure that allows for 
effective case management at an operational/officer level that covers all services 
responsible for enforcement activity.

 To further develop the action log with outcomes of the Officers Enforcement Group 
meetings. 

 To consider the best approach for case management, allowing sharing of 
intelligence on cases between service areas that is complaint with GDPR 
requirements. 

 In addressing the above, the working party suggested above considers the 
effectiveness of current intelligence sharing between services to determine 
whether or not there is scope for improvements.

 For the Corporate Enforcement page on Pentana to include links to all the Council’s 
enforcement guidance / polices. 

 To continue to develop further the level of detail provided in performance reporting 
to emphasise both the proactive and reactive enforcement work it conducts. 

  

Page 15



Page 6 of 29

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES – Eastern Internal Audit Services 

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures against 
which the new contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. 

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however, 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
 4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by 
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Consortium Manager to ensure that 
appropriate action is taken.

5.3 The last quarters work has been completed and a report on the performance measures 
provided to the Head of Internal Audit, performance is currently at green status, however, 
targets in relation to the issuing of reports 10 days within the end of the quarter was missed 
for Q1. For one of these reports; Private Sector Housing, additional audit days were requested 
to allow the auditor to provide adequate coverage of the area following the identification of 
significant control findings. 

Attention was therefore focused in this area and as a result, a delay in finalising the strategic 
enforcement position statement was also experienced. Regular discussions are held with 
TIAA to ensure that they are able to meet our expectations and despite delays we are pleased 
to report that TIAA are now back on track to deliver the remainder of the internal audit plan.  

 

Page 16



Page 7 of 29

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

P
age 17



Page 8 of 29

P
age 18



Page 9 of 29

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of the Private Sector Housing Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Policies and procedures 1 1 0 0

Minor Works 3 1 1 0

Disabled Facilities Grants 2 1 2 3

Houses in Multiple 
Occupation

4 1 1 0

Caravan sites 3 0 0 0

Empty Homes 3 2 2 0

Total 16 6 6 3

SCOPE

An audit of Private Sector Housing arrangements was undertaken to consider how the service is being managed. The review focused on Disabled Facilities 
Grants (DFGs), Empty Properties and Enforcement and Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) licensing and standards. The scope also included arrangements 
for caravan licensing and the administration of minor works for Council tenants requiring adaptations not processed through the formal DFG process.

P
age 19



Page 10 of 29

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'No Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion has 
been derived as a result of 16 'urgent', six 'important' and six 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

 The audit has also raised three 'operational effectiveness matters', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities 
for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.

 Since the areas under scope of this review have not been subject to previous audit scrutiny by TIAA, no direction of travel indicator has been provided.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged that in the following area sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

Minor Works

 Invoice payments for minor adaptation works for Council tenants had been promptly processed with the correct accounting for VAT, thereby ensuring they are 
correctly accounted for within the Council’s financial system.  

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas whereby controls require improvement, and as a result of these findings 16 'urgent' recommendations have been made.

Policies and Procedures 

 The Council to review its Empty Homes Strategy that includes links to the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy in order to reduce the risk of  being 
unable to effectively communicate with its residents on its approach to managing empty homes and its powers to enforce legislative requirements. 

P
age 20



Page 11 of 29

Minor Works

 To undertake a review of the minor works arrangements for Council tenants, including whether to refer the work to the Council's Housing Repairs Team to 
complete, rather than use an external contractor. If the decision is to continue to outsource the service, then there is a need to ensure better lines of 
communication exist between Private Sector Housing (PSH) and the Council's Housing Repairs team and Property Services, prior to any works being 
commissioned, so as to reduce the risk of financial losses to the Council where previous works that had been paid for, are replaced at additional costs to the 
Council. Management has subsequently confirmed that all minor works are now formally completed by the Housing Repairs Team to ensure consistency, clear 
communication of works and efficiencies. No further action is required.

 To comply with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules when engaging external contractors for undertaking minor adaptation works, in order to reduce the 
risk of exposure to criticism over the lack of compliance with correct procedure and lack of transparency / value for money with public funds. Management has 
subsequently confirmed that all of the Housing Team, inclusive of PSH have been reminded of the procurement rules in respect to spend. Furthermore, as 
previously stated, all minor works are now completed by the Housing Repairs Team to ensure consistency, efficiency and effectiveness. All works carried out 
by the Housing Repairs Team are subject to checks by the Housing Repairs Manager and / or qualified officer including following the necessary risk 
assessments during works, robustness of fittings and quality of works. No further action is required.

 The Council to seek assurances that external contractors used for undertaking minor adaptation works are Health and Safety compliant, thereby reducing the 
risk of financial penalties/fines and reputational damage to the Council in the event of injury to the tenant through poor workmanship or negligence of the 
contractor. Management has subsequently confirmed that all minor works are now formally completed by the Housing Repairs Team to ensure consistency, 
clear communication of works and efficiencies. In addition, staff members of the Housing Team, including PSH, have been reminded of the need to complete 
the ‘approved contractor’ form and seek the necessary clearances from the Health and Safety Officer before work commences. No further action is required.

Disabled Facilities Grants

 To undertake a review of all the PSH budgets, including DFG private and public case budgets, so as to ensure a baseline is agreed. Thereafter, monthly or 
quarterly reconciliations to be completed between PSH records and those within the finance system with evidence that any discrepancies have been 
investigated and explained. The reconciliation to be subject to independent review.  Without a formal reconciliation, there is an increased risk of anomalies 
between the two systems remaining undetected, leading to inaccurate and an unreliable budget position.

 PSH Officers maintain active passwords for Mosaic in order to provide cover and maintain business continuity, in the absence of the current PSH Officer, in 
the processing of DFGs. Where PSH do not have active passwords, there is an increased risk of delays in processing DFGs to vulnerable persons in need of 
adaptations. The risk is further enhanced through the lack of any meaningful performance data with which to detect if and when delays are occurring in the 
processing of DFGs from the point the Council takes over responsibility from the Occupational Therapist (OT).

P
age 21



Page 12 of 29

Houses of Multiple Occupation

 To ensure all HMOs requiring a licence, including those requiring a licence as a consequence of the new legislative requirements from 1st October 2018, are 
identified and that a comprehensive record is produced / maintained listing all such properties, including audit trail over the application status, confirmation of 
the fee paid, license issue date and inspection history. Furthermore, the Council needs to undertake enforcement action against those landlords who have yet 
to apply for licences and to confirm that those HMOs not requiring a licence, do have a genuine reason for not doing so. Without this information, assurances 
cannot be provided that the Council has identified and is managing HMOs effectively, thereby increasing the risk of non-compliance with legislative 
requirements and reputational damage, to the Council.

 All outstanding inspection visits for HMO’s to be scheduled in and completed. Until such time as Northgate Assure is in place, scheduling of visits should be 
through a combination of the HMO spreadsheet and PSH Officer's Outlook. Management to monitor progress on a monthly basis to ensure visits are being 
undertaken on or before due dates. Where HMO inspections are not completed in accordance with required timescales, the Council is failing in its legal 
obligations in effectively managing HMOs, whilst also increasing the risk of legal and reputational damage should the health and safety of residents be 
adversely impacted on and where the Council has failed to have identified / taken measures to address this.

 To compile and maintain accurate records of all enforcement action due / taken, with progress reported to senior management at regular intervals which is 
then used to populate the Northgate system. This is to reduce the risk that not all cases have been identified and are not acted upon, thereby breaching the 
Council's legal obligations.

 The Council needs to assess and to pursue HMO enforcement action as applicable, in accordance with its statutory responsibilities and in doing so, introduce 
effective case management. This is to reduce the risk of the Council not discharging its statutory responsibilities under HMO legislation resulting in missed 
prosecutions, non-compliance with HMO conditions which remain unabated and legal and reputational damage to the Council. 

Caravan Sites

 To put in place a formal process between Planning and PSH to ensure all approved caravan sites are identified, including those where the original planning 
application was rejected but successfully appealed by the applicant.  PSH liaise with Planning, to review all approved planning applications within the previous 
two years to ensure no cases have been overlooked where caravan sites do not have a formal licence, if required. Where the Council is not aware of all 
caravan sites within its district, it will not be able to ensure that those sites requiring licences have actually been granted a licence. This increases the risk of 
the Council not being able to enforce legal action, including imposing fines of up to £2,500 or withdrawing the licence where conditions are not considered 
acceptable.

 The Council to monitor all newly approved caravan sites to ensure ownership is transferred to Land Registry and that a licence application has been applied 
for and processed. This includes all sites where it has been confirmed that planning permission has already been granted, in order to make sure the requisite 
ownership transfers are actioned and a licence applied for / issued and can be included / evidenced, as a standard task as part of the application process. 
This is to prevent the risk that Land Registry records are not updated with the transfer of ownership and therefore remain unlicensed.

P
age 22



Page 13 of 29

 All licenced caravan sites due / overdue for inspection be subject to the requisite checks forthwith with six monthly reports submitted to management confirming 
that all scheduled inspections have been completed in accordance with the due dates. This is to reduce the risk of sites not being visited and non-compliances 
not being picked up and continuing unabated. This could also result in reputational damage to the Council should non-compliance arise and become public 
knowledge.

Empty Homes

 PSH and Finance to undertake a reconciliation between their respective Decent Homes Assistant Loan records covering the previous two years, plus current. 
Thereafter, PSH and Finance to confirm the accuracy of the quarterly updates in addition to Finance being copied in to the notification for new / repaid loans. 
This will reduce the risk of loans (long terms debts) being overlooked and not being correctly stated in the Council's accounts as a contingent asset.  

 PSH to ensure all empty property checks, as per the quarterly CT records, are kept up to date. Delays in reconciling the property reports from Council Tax 
increases the risk of empty properties not being promptly identified, thereby delaying potential enforcement action under powers delegated to the Council.  
This also increases the risk of reputational damage to the Council for poor management of empty homes where enforcement action is necessary.   

 To ensure all follow up visits where Improvement Notices have been issued are scheduled and undertaken within the 12 month timeframe, so as to prevent 
the risk of conditions worsening, potentially causing further breaches of legal requirements and the risk of health and safety matters arising in addition to 
reputational damage to the Council.   

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where six 'important' recommendations have been made.

Policies and Procedures 

 The Community Housing Renewal Policy to be reviewed and updated where applicable. The Decent Homes Assistance Loans Procedure be reviewed and 
updated and to include procedures for assessing and processing Decent Homes Assistance Grants, including delegated levels for discretion to be applied 
between awarding a grant in excess of £999, where it would ordinarily qualify for a loan.  This will help reduce the risk of loans and grants being incorrectly 
assessed and inconsistent practices developing and criticism being made where a grant is being issued for works in excess of the grant limit which is not 
repayable.

Minor Works

 Once the decision as to whether or not to outsource minor works for adaptations has been addressed, a formal written procedure to be produced on the 
processing of minor works for Council tenants and include types of work, roles and responsibilities for oversight / completion and checking of the works and 
payment / coding arrangements. This is to reduce the risk of inconsistent/incorrect practices developing or even duplication / unnecessary works at additional 
costs to the Council. As previously stated, management has subsequently confirmed that all minor works are now formally completed by the Housing Repairs 
Team to ensure consistency, clear communication of works and efficiencies. No further action is required.

P
age 23



Page 14 of 29

Disabled Facilities Grants

 The Housing Business Support Team to scan all outstanding and new means testing forms and supporting documentary evidence on to SharePoint as a 
standard operating procedure and to e-mail the generic PSH e-mail account for each one. This is to reduce the risk of unnecessary delays in the application 
process causing reputational damage to the Council through dissatisfaction of those entitled / in need of adaptations. Management has subsequently confirmed 
that all documentation is now scanned by the Business Support Team. No further action required.

Houses of Multiple Occupation

 PSH to formally adopt/implement a standard inspection checklist for every HMO inspection recording all mandatory checks, supported by documentary 
evidence. This will reduce the risk of key areas being overlooked or officers not being able to demonstrate that all mandatory items have been covered, if 
issues were later to arise.

Empty Homes

 All Decent Homes Grants / Loans to be approved by a senior member of staff rather than a peer. Where discretion is used to issue a grant instead of a loan, 
where the payment is >£1,000, this reason should be formally documented for the approving officer to consider. Such requirements should also be referred to 
in written guidance. This reduces the risk of criticism where discretion is applied to award a grant instead of a loan, where set thresholds are not applied.

 To undertake annual checks of householders insurance for those in receipt of a Decent Homes Assistant Loan and that this requirement be referred to in the 
written procedure for administering Decent Homes Assistant Loans. This will help mitigate the risk of the Council not identifying and taking the appropriate 
actions where the required cover is not in place, as per the conditions of the loan and risking the loan being irrecoverable or incurring additional costs in any 
subsequent recovery action.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where six 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Minor Works

 The spreadsheet maintained by PSH for recording payments for minor works to include all works completed on behalf of PSH and show a breakdown of costs 
between Gross values (£), Net (£) and VAT (£). This helps reduce the risk that the figures do not represent an accurate record of the true costs and do not 
match with those appearing in the Council's finance system. Management has subsequently confirmed that all minor works are now formally completed by the 
Housing Repairs Team to ensure consistency, clear communication of works and efficiencies. No further action is required.

Disabled Facilities Grants

 The Council to provide further guidance on its website for those applying for a DFG with an overview of the process once a recommendation has been received 
from the OT, as this is the point at which the Council is responsible for checking financial eligibility. This can increase the risk of stress / hardship through not 
knowing if and when applicants are eligible for a grant and when the works will commence.   

P
age 24



Page 15 of 29

 To introduce meaningful performance measures that accurately measure all aspects of the processing of a DFG, from the point that it has assumed 
responsibility i.e. the date upon receipt of the recommendation from the OT, through to advising the applicant of their financial eligibility to a DFG, involvement 
of Building Control, through to the appointment of an approved contractor.  There is a risk that delays are occurring in the processing of DFGs that are not 
being detected and causing hardship to those applicants entitled to / in need of, disabled adaptations.           

Houses of Multiple Occupation

 All supporting documentary evidence for HMOs to be consolidated to one specific area e.g. IDOX or SharePoint or other more appropriate storage facility so 
as to reduce the risk that records may not be easily retrievable or become misfiled altogether. Management has subsequently confirmed that all PSH Officers 
have been reminded of this instruction, which will be monitored moving forward by the Housing Options Manager or other appropriate manager. No further 
action is required.

Empty Homes

 PSH to maintain accurate records that clearly distinguish between both Decent Homes Assistance Loans and Grants in order to reduce the risk of loans not 
being recorded correctly as a long term debt and being overlooked for recovery purposes, resulting in financial loss to the Council. 

 The PSH webpage for publicising Decent Homes Assistance Loans / Grants be updated to include a link to the application form with more detailed guidance 
required to complete the application. This will help reduce the risk of delays in the application process for qualifying persons and or prospective applicants 
struggling with the application process.   

Operational Effectiveness Matters

The three operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following:

Disabled Facilities Grants

 Whether or not to continue using Mosaic for processing public DFG referrals once the Council has procured 'Northgate Assure' as its primary system for 
Housing activity, included PSH.  

 The option of providing a means testing application on the Council's website or e-mailing the means testing form following the recommendation from the OT. 
The e-mail address could be obtained through calling the applicant to give them the option that could include submitting their documentary evidence by e-mail 
rather than through the post or visiting the Council offices. 

 For the Council to consider its approach to using Building Control / An Approved List, for undertaking all its DFG works, by placing responsibility on the 
applicant to obtain two quotes and to submit them to the Council to approve one of them.    

P
age 25



Page 16 of 29

Previous audit recommendations

The areas included in the scope have not been previously subject to audit review by TIAA.

Other issues noted

 The Council switched off FLARE in March 2019 having performed a 'Data dump'; essentially via a CSV file. This was a Council wide decision. PSH requested 
all data be extracted from FLARE in to a CSV file to be uploaded into a new system. The extraction of data was limited due to restrictions within FLARE and 
only based on the original data contained therein at the time. 
Northgate Assure was scoped into the integrated Housing systems project in January 2019; the project mandate details all the areas covered and scoped into 
the work. Tascomi was an option although did not offer the same level of service. Workaround arrangements in addition to the spreadsheets were put in place 
to capture the workload as well as purchasing ‘Ferret Renovator’ to ensure DFGs could continue to be processed. There is currently no deadline for the 
procurement of Northgate services although the capital budget has been approved. A Project Manager has been appointed and progress is being made to 
role the project out.
Prior to March 2019, FLARE had been used for administering DFGs; both private (privately owned properties)] and public (Council tenants), Houses of Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) and Empty Property activity. However, given the aforementioned, assurances could not be provided over the completeness and accuracy 
of the key information required for audit testing purposes prior to the transfer.   

 The Housing Act 2004 introduced a new mandatory licensing system for certain types of Houses in Multiple Occupation (“HIMO”). Following consultation by 
central government in late 2015, Statutory Instrument 2018 No 221 was issued. From 1st October 2018 the scope of licences increased to include all HMOs 
occupied by five or more people in one household. Although this is a statutory requirement, the legislation required formal adoption by the Council within 
Policy. 
The Housing Act 2004 makes it a criminal offence if a person controlling or managing an HMO does not have the required licence. A person found guilty of 
such an offence will be subject to a fine up to a maximum of £20,000. Breaching any condition of a licence is also an offence, punishable by a fine not 
exceeding level 5 on the present scale unlimited fine. 
A report was submitted by the Housing Options Manager (HOM) and the Housing Landlord Services Manager to Cabinet at is meeting on 12th March 2019, 
recommending Cabinet to 'adopt' the new Housing Act 2004 HMO Licensing Policy, and reflecting these new requirements/changes in its own Housing Act 
2004 HMO Licensing Policy.  
The draft Policy had previously been considered by the Policy Development Panel (PDP) at its meeting on 19th September 2018 and approved to be considered 
by Cabinet. The report also sought approval from the PDP, through a Portfolio Holder decision, to increase the HMO license fee, which had not been amended 
since 2011, before the new licence applications could be issued under the new fee charging regime. This was to ensure consistency with all HMO licensing 
fees going forward.
The Council did not start sending application forms to landlords until 7th November 2018 with reminders sent on 22nd November 2018. However, these were 
sent to known landlords and not including any new HMOs meeting the new criteria. In addition, with effect from June 2019, the Council only included a link on 
its website to the application form for landlords to access, whereas previously, they were only sent out manually.   

P
age 26



Page 17 of 29

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government’s Houses of Multiple Occupation and residential property licensing reform – Guidance for Local 
Housing Authorities’ refers under section 2.6 ‘Implementation’ to ‘Local Housing Authorities Under s 55(5) of the Act, local housing authorities have a duty to 
effectively implement mandatory licensing in their district. This means that they must promote licensing in their area and accept and process applications 
before 1 October 2018'.
We expect local housing authorities to have the framework in place to process and issue licences in advance of this date and to encourage early applications 
from landlords who are due to become subject to mandatory licensing’.
Where there is a legislative requirement, in this case in regard to the new HMO requirements effective from 1st October 2018, this must be applied. Ideally, 
Policy should be updated to reflect these requirements prior to the change. This was achieved, although not approved by Cabinet until 12th March 2019. 
Recommendations have been made (below) to address other weaknesses in this area. 

P
age 27



Page 18 of 29

Assurance Review of the Section 106 (s106) Agreements Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Record keeping and 
monitoring

0 0 4 0

Expenditure 0 0 0 1

Total 0 0 4 1

SCOPE

A review of s106 Agreements, including the processes in place for managing and monitoring these key schemes, was completed as part of the agreed audit 
plan for 2019/20. The audit focused on the effectiveness and efficiency of the control environment, particularly in respect of record keeping and monitoring, 
expenditure, internal processes and involvement of other services and third parties.

P
age 28



Page 19 of 29

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 
opinion has been derived as a result of four 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.  

 The previous review was carried out in June 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work, with the original scope including Planning, Planning Enforcement 
and s106 Planning Agreements (SH/18/18). At the request of the then Place Manager and in agreement with the Head of Internal Audit, Section 106 Agreements 
were reported separately (SH/18/07). This was essentially due to the number and nature of issues found with the s106s. The final report had a ‘Limited Assurance 
having raised two ‘Urgent’, two ‘Important’ and two ‘Needs attention’ recommendations.   

 The direction of travel indicates a significant improvement in the administration of s106 Agreements, since the previous review.  

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 A comprehensive suite of written guidance has been produced to support the processing and monitoring of s106 Agreements in support of the Local Plan Policy. 

 The Council has appointed a s106 Monitoring Officer, with effect from 1st April 2019. This officer ensures that all conditions set out within s106 Agreements are 
monitored and acted upon when they become due.

 The Council’s s106 Monitoring Officer closely monitors s106 obligations, including those requiring involvement of third parties such as the NHS, Lincolnshire 
County Council, Parish Councils, in order to ensure monies are used for the purpose they were intended and spent within any deadlines included within the 
s106 Agreement. 

 Progress with s106 Agreement conditions and monies is reported to the Strategic Growth Board; a Member and senior officer group that provides oversight and 
coordination of the key housing and development programmes in South Holland and who monitor performance against strategic business plans (both capital 
and revenue) and commission delivery or direct operational resource as required.

P
age 29



Page 20 of 29

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas where four 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Record keeping and monitoring 

 There is a need to provide cover in the absence of the s106 Monitoring Officer so as to reduce the risk of planning obligations contained within s106 Agreements 
being overlooked or delayed and delays in reporting progress to the senior management and Members. 

 To undertake a reconciliation between the s106 Monitoring records and those within the new system, currently being procured by Legal services of all s106 
Agreements. This is in order to reduce the risk of errors or discrepancies between records held in Planning and in Legal Services for the management and 
oversight of s106 Agreements and the obligations contained therein. 

 To restrict access to amend / update the s106 Monitoring spreadsheet to only those relevant and authorised officers within Planning, Legal and Finance (PSPS).  
. Access for other areas to be restricted to 'Read only', as applicable. This is to reduce the risk of data being deleted or altered without the knowledge of either 
the s106 Monitoring Officer or Finance thereby increasing the risk of obligations not being delivered and or financial information being inaccurate.  

 For Planning to include its deadline for processing the application in its instructions to the Senior Planning Lawyer to prepare a s106 Agreement and for the 
s106 Monitoring Officer and the Senior Planning Lawyer to include, as a standard item at their regular meetings, progress with pending s106s i.e. where Planning 
has issued instructions to Legal to prepare a s106 Agreement. This is to help mitigate against the risk of unnecessary delays arising in the preparation of the 
s106 Agreement, resulting in key deadlines not being met.

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

 The operational effectiveness matter, for management to consider relates to aligning the reports to the Strategic Growth Board and to the Finance Board, in 
order to prevent the need for preparing two reporting formats, essentially relating to the same topic i.e. s106 obligations.

Previous audit recommendations

The previous internal audit recommendations (SH/18/07) had been confirmed as implemented as part of our cyclical follow up processes.

P
age 30



Page 21 of 29

Other points noted

The end of year financial position on s106 monies was last submitted to the Shared Executive Director of Commercialisation, prior to the scheduled Finance Board 
meeting, on 14th June 2019. This meeting was cancelled due to the flooding mitigation works. The format of the data to be presented to the Finance Board is currently 
under review with no further update provided since the end of year position. 

Control reconciliations are being undertaken between Finance and Planning, with outcomes reported to the Strategic Growth Board at the July 2019 meeting, with the 
next scheduled to be presented late October 2019. Finance will build upon the s106 Monitoring Officer's report to the Strategic Growth Board and present the latest 
financial position to Finance Board on 5th November 2019. That data will progressively move over to the proposed format for January/February 2020 Finance Board.

The outcomes will though require reporting to the Strategic Finance and Compliance Manager before they are reported to the Shared Executive Director of 
Commercialisation and the Finance Board.  

P
age 31



Page 22 of 29

Assurance Review of the Strategic Housing Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Governance 0 1 0 1

Performance monitoring 0 0 1 0

Total 0 1 1 1

No recommendations have been raised in respect of appraisal and 
assessment, pre-commencement or project management. 

SCOPE

This audit was carried out to provide assurance over the strategic housing programme and projects that have been delivered for Welland Homes and the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA). In particular, it reviewed the overall governance of the process, appraisal and assessment of projects, pre-commencement, 
project management and performance monitoring.

P
age 32



Page 23 of 29

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion has 
been derived as a result of one 'important' and one 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out a matter identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.

 A direction of travel has not been provided since the scope of this audit has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 The Strategic Housing team has a resources plan spreadsheet for monitoring ongoing projects, to ensure that all necessary tasks have a responsible officer 
assigned and that key milestones are achieved.

 A 'hopper' model has been developed to calculate the financial impact of proposed housing projects and assessing non-financial criteria, to determine whether 
they meet the Council's objectives. This helps to ensure that only projects which meet the Council's objectives are pursued and that the most appropriate 
development route is selected for each potential project.

 All necessary internal approvals and external appointments are completed prior to formal contracts being signed, to ensure that the project is ready to proceed 
before any legal agreements are entered in to.

 The Council's Contract Procedure Rules are adhered to for all appointments of contractors and consultants, including those for Welland Homes' projects, to 
ensure that a fair and transparent process is followed.

 Project expenditure is monitored regularly against approved budgets, to ensure that the financial returns expected can be achieved.

 Progress with individual projects is reported regularly to the Council and the Welland Homes Board. This ensures that all interested parties are kept up to date 
with progress and any issues that may arise can be promptly resolved.

P
age 33



Page 24 of 29

Assurance Review of Environmental Protection

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Contaminated land 0 0 0 0

Air quality 0 0 2 0

Private water supplies 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 2 0

SCOPE

The previous audit of Environmental Protection, with a scope covering contaminated land, air quality and private water supplies, was completed in 2017/18, 
with a limited assurance grading given. The 2018/19 review was deferred to allow the team to work on the implementation of new software. This audit covered 
the same scope as the previous audit and followed up on recommendations raised during the last review, to ensure that controls have been improved following 
software implementation.

P
age 34



Page 25 of 29

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 
opinion has been derived as a result of one 'important' and three 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 The issues raised in the ‘Other points to note’ section have also been taken in account when determining the overall level of assurance.
 The previous audit report on Environmental Protection (BRK/18/06 SH/18/05) was issued in January 2018 and concluded in a ‘Limited’ assurance opinion, 

having raised 16 recommendations. This indicates that the overall level of assurance has improved since the last audit.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 Both Councils have guidance for officers on managing contaminated land, and Breckland Council has procedures for private water supplies and environmental 
permitting, to ensure a consistent approach to managing these services.

 Both Councils have a published register of contaminated land sites and an internal register of potential contaminated sites, to help ensure that such sites are 
not developed without appropriate mitigation measures being put in place.

 Each Council monitors air quality within its respective district and publishes an annual report on air quality on its website. This is to ensure that members of the 
public are aware of air quality issues and how their Council is responding to them.

 Application fees and annual subsistence fees for environmental permits at both Councils are invoiced and paid promptly, to ensure that the costs of delivering 
this service are recovered.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Air Quality

 Procedure notes for environmental permitting be produced, to reduce the risk of inconsistent working practices developing and increase resilience. 

P
age 35



Page 26 of 29

Contaminated Land, Air Quality and Private Water Supplies

 Fees for environmental permits and private water supply samples be recorded on premises records on Tascomi, thereby improving audit trail and reducing the 
risk of correct fees not having been received. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.

Other points to note

 SHDC migrated their computer system from Civica Flare to Tascomi Public Protection in April 2019, with Flare switched off on 31st March 2019. Due to the 
contract termination arrangements with Civica, there was only a brief overlap at the end of March 2019. The data was extracted from the Civica system prior 
to the switch and then processed by Tascomi themselves for upload to the new system. Various issues with the data and functionality of the new system have 
been identified and raised with Tascomi; addressing these is an ongoing process.

 Due to resourcing issues, South Holland District Council has been unable to complete regular inspections of businesses in the district that have environmental 
permits. In order to resolve this issue, a consultant has been appointed to undertake a review of all permitted premises, conduct inspections and produce an 
inspection programme for the Council to follow in future years. This external review is taking place in October 2019.

P
age 36



Page 27 of 29

Assurance Review of the Leisure Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Contract Monitoring, 
including performance

0 0 1 0

Payment Mechanism 0 1 0 0

Total 0 1 1 0

SCOPE

This review focused on the controls in place for the contract management of the new contract to ensure that these are robust and to ensure appropriate 
performance of Parkwood Leisure is in accordance with contractual requirements.

P
age 37



Page 28 of 29

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 
opinion has been derived as a result of one ‘Important’ and one ‘Needs attention’ recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

 The previous report of Leisure Services (SH/19/11) was issued in February 2019 with a ‘Substantial’ assurance, having not raised any recommendations. The 
review focused on the closedown arrangements of the previous contract and mobilisation of the new contract prior to commencing on 1st March 2019. Therefore, 
no direction of travel comparison is appropriate. 

 The Council is currently seeking to recover any losses through a standard dilapidations claim with the previous tenants as per the terms of the previous contract. 
As a consequence of the actions being taken by the Council, further scrutiny of this issue was excluded from the scope of the audit.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 The Council and Parkwood Leisure have a signed contract that includes reference to the contract duration, termination clauses, payment mechanism, 
performance measures, default arrangements, client contractor liaison and reporting requirements, thereby making it clear the contractual obligations of both 
parties.

 The Council has a formal contract monitoring manual in place. This allows the Council to follow documented processes for monitoring the performance of the 
contractor’s performance against contractual requirements.  

 The Council receives monthly reports and quarterly performance reports; the latter supported by progress with statutory compliances and with monthly 
breakdowns of income and expenditure for both the Castle Sports Complex and the Peele Leisure Centre. This allows the Council to closely monitor compliance 
requirements and financial matters in regard the contract with Parkwood Leisure.

 Monthly and quarterly liaison meetings take place between the Council and Parkwood Leisure, which includes review of the quarterly performance reports at 
the quarterly meeting. This ensures that key issues are covered / discussed and monitored.  

 Inspections visits by Council officers are formally documented including actions requiring attention. This helps maintain high standards as required under the 
terms of the contract and for service users.

P
age 38



Page 29 of 29

 The Castle Sports Complex acquired QUEST accreditation on 19/09/19 having undergone assessment on 02/09/19 by the National Benchmarking Service 
(NBS). The accreditation covers the period up to March 2020. The Peele Leisure Complex in Long Sutton underwent an Unannounced Directional Review on 
07/08/19 and maintained the banding of 'Very Good' despite the review itself attaining a banding of 'Good'. The accreditation is due for renewal in May 2020. 
This demonstrates the Council's Leisure Services are operating in accordance with industry standards.  

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following area where one 'Important' recommendation has been made.

Payment mechanism  

 To ensure the Council and Parkwood leisure comply with the payment terms as specified in the contract (Schedule 6), in order to reduce the risk of delays in 
the Council receiving monies due and as agreed by all parties.  

The audit has also highlighted the following area where one 'Needs attention' recommendation has been made.

Contract monitoring and performance information 

 For outcomes of matters raised in the monthly client / contractor meetings to be recorded in subsequent meeting notes. This is to reduce the risk that they 
remain outstanding adversely impacting on the running of the contract.

Operational Effectiveness Matters

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

To: Governance and Audit Committee, 14 November 2019

Author: Faye Haywood, Internal Audit Manager

Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 4 
November 2019

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the contents of the report.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s implementation 
of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements 
to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to its Internal Audit Service.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to establish a 
process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking 
action. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 
Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the Committee 
is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which management has 
progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 4 November 2019.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 
efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 41

Agenda Item 6.



4.2 Risk Management 

4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with those 
controls materialising.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Faye Haywood Internal Audit Manager
Telephone Number: 01508 533873
Email: efhaywood@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Faye Haywood

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Page 42



Page 1 of 9

Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Period Covered: 1 April 2019 to 4 November 2019

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION 2

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS 2

3. STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 2

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations 4

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 5

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - 2018/19       9

Page 43



Page 2 of 9

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to establish 
a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been 
effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking action. 
The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:

 The status of agreed actions. 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS 

Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations 

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to ensure 
implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer. 

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided.

2.3 Escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which have been 
overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and through the 
Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 Officer to 
ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further escalation is 
through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.

Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Audit Recommendations

2.4 East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) undertake the internal audit reviews of the Public Sector 
Partnership Services key finance functions. Recommendations raised are then subsequently 
monitored by East Lindsey District Council staff, with updates provided to the Head of Internal 
Audit for South Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are recorded on 
Pentana, which enables greater oversight by both PSPS and South Holland management. 

3. STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies outstanding recommendations that have 
previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become outstanding 
during this period. 

Page 44



Page 3 of 9

3.2 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers. 

 Of those, 81 have been implemented by management, four are outstanding (one urgent and 
three important). 

3.3 The management responses in relation to the outstanding urgent and important outstanding 
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 2 of the report. 

Number raised 85

Complete 81 95%

Outstanding 4 5%

3.4 In 2018/19 a total of 76 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers. Of 
these 55 have been completed and 10 (two urgent, four important and four needs attention) 
are overdue. A total of 11 recommendations are not yet due. 

Number raised 76

Complete 55 72%

Outstanding 10 13%

Not yet due 11 15%

3.5 The management responses in relation to the outstanding important recommendations can 
be seen at Appendix 3 of the report.

3.6 In 2019/20 a total of 38 recommendations have been raised so far. Of these eight have been 
completed and the remaining 30 are not yet due. 

Number raised 38

Complete 8 21%

Outstanding 0 0%

Not yet due 30 79%

Page 45



Page 4 of 9

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations

P
age 46



Page 5 of 9

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description

Original 
Date 

Revised 
Date 

Latest Note

SH1804 
Welland Homes

Strategic 
Housing 
Manager

To devise a service level 
agreement to formally record 
the services provided by the 
Council to Welland Homes, 
and to the terms on which 
those services are provided, 
including service charges.

Important Outstanding 
(With Agreed 
Extension)

31-Mar-18 31-Jan-20 Legal officers have prepared a 

contact, but it is still in draft form 

and has not been shared with Welland 

Homes board yet.  The reason for the 

delay is that the contract has 

financial implications and accordingly 

must feed into the budget setting 

process. This extent of the services 

provided to the Council by Welland 

Homes and the appropriate cost is to 

be agreed by both parties and must 

feed into the 2020/21 budget setting 

process for both 

parties.  Accordingly, in October 

2019, a ‘special’ Welland Homes Board 

meeting has been convened to discuss 

the SLA and its implications on the 

2020/21 budget.  Following agreement 

by both parties, SHDC and Welland 

Homes will be in a position to enter 

into an SLA.

SH1809 Asset 
Management

Property 
Services 
Manager

A programmed review of all 
leases is to be undertaken, this 
will include; Lease agreements 
be entered into for existing 
tenants, Lease agreements be 
entered into for new tenants 
and a review of rent 
increments given to long term 
tenants on or before the 
expiration of their current lease 
period.

Urgent Outstanding 
(With Agreed 
Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Mar-20 All leases to be reviewed by legal 

services by 31st October 2019 and a 

plan to prioritise leases needing to 

bring to an end, those needing 

extending and a steer on what levels 

of income the Council wishes to 

attain. Negotiations will then take 

place with the lessees and a statutory 

process started to achieve the aims. 

To set a revised indicative date for 

completion of 31st March 2020. Subject 

to further review by NPS.

SH1809 Asset 
Management

Housing 
Landlord 

The Letting Policy be updated 
to reflect current practices, 
such as not obtaining deposits 

Important Outstanding 
(With Agreed 
Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Mar-20 The Lettings Policy has been revised 

in consultation with NPS and agreed 

informally with the relevant Portfolio 

P
age 47



Page 6 of 9

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description

Original 
Date 

Revised 
Date 

Latest Note

Services 
Manager

from tenants in the industrial 
units and how end of tenancy 
checks will take account of any 
damages incurred by the 
tenant.

Holder. Legal advice has been sought 

as a result amendment have been 

suggested to ensure that officers are 

given authority deemed appropriate. 

The extension is therefore requested 

to allow the policy with amendments to 

be appropriately approved.

Financial Audits PSPS

PFINAUD001d 
Accounts 
Payable Key 
Controls

Head of 
Finance

Staff be reminded to ensure 
their entry on the matrix 
remains up to date. Annual 
review of the matrix entries be 
undertaken

Important Outstanding 
(With Agreed 
Extension)

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 The new Finance system project 
implementation will commence shortly and 
the matrix of authorisations will be included 
as part of that, so there will be no need for 
a separate system.

P
age 48



Page 7 of 9

APPENDIX 3 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2018/19

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description

Original Date Revised Date Latest Note

SH1903 
CPBS 
(PSPS)

Head of 
Financial 
Services 
PSPS Steve 
Houchin

The Council to introduce a formal 
control process/framework for 
monitoring the performance of 
CPBS (known as Public Sector 
Partnership Services Limited 
(PSPS) from 01/04/19) and agree 
recovery action/service 
improvement plans where targets 
are not achieved. This to include for 
example, identifying key measures / 
milestones such as deadlines in 
budget setting timetables, quality of 
information provided, KPIs, against 
which mitigating actions are to be 
taken should issues arise

Important Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

31/05/2019 31/12/2019 Regular meetings are held 

between the S151 officer 

and Deputy S151 officer and 

the PSPS's Chief Executive 

and Head of Finial 

Services. Issues around 

service delivery are 

discussed at this meeting. 

In addition, regular 

meetings are being held 

between SHDC's Deputy S151 

officer and PSPS's Head of 

Financial Services and 

deputy Head of Financial 

Services and at this 

meeting delivery of 

reports, budget setting are 

discussed with any issues 

that are not resolved 

passed up to the above-

mentioned meeting. An 

extension has been 

requested to formalise this 

approach. 
SH1915 
Housing 
Needs

Housing 
Landlord 
Services 
Manager

A procedure be developed and 
implemented to support the 
administration and control of 
homeless assistance grants.

Important Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

30/09/2019 31/01/2020 An extension is requested 

to allow further time to 

understand the pressures on 

homelessness vs funds 

requested to support 

P
age 49



Page 8 of 9

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description

Original Date Revised Date Latest Note

homelessness prevention. 

Considering is being given 

during budget setting to 

the funds spent vs the 

scope of assistance. An 

extension is requested for 

3 months to allow a 

procedure to be developed 

in line with current 

pressures and the budget 

available.
SH1915 
Housing 
Needs

Housing 
Landlord 
Services 
Manager

In order to comply with the 
requirements of the Council’s 
Common Housing Allocations 
Policy (see recommendation 1), the 
following information needs to be 
clearly evident for each application:
Audit trail demonstrating requisite 
reassessments have been applied 
as and when due;
Confirmation that each application 
has been subject to peer review;
Evidence supporting the 
assessment of the applicant’s 
priority rating; and
Evidence to confirm the applicant 
has been informed of the outcome 
of their housing allocation.
Refer also to recommendation 1 
bullet points 1 and 5.

Important Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

31/08/2019 31/01/2020 An extension of this action 

is requested to enable 

improvements to be brought 

online from Northgate. The 

council will imminently be 

deploying an online housing 

application process which 

will include a number of 

stages approval for 

Officers. The application 

process will reflect the 

identified checks and 

balances. There has been a 

delay in bringing forward 

online applications due to 

a required system upgrade. 

The process which has been 

developed in test can now 

be built in a live 

environment. An extension 

for 3 months is requested 

to enable this process to 

be developed.

Financial Audits PSPS

P
age 50



Page 9 of 9

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description

Original Date Revised Date Latest Note

Financial 
Services Key 
Controls

Accounts 
Payable 
Supervisor 

Regular reporting of retrospective 
purchase order analysis to Section 
151 Officer be reinstated to enable 
clear corporate monitoring

Urgent Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

30/06/2019 30/11/2019 Extension requested until 

November to allow for July, 

September and October to be 

provided to S151 which will 

provide for a full three 

months of data. August data 

was not provided due to a 

miscommunication. 

Financial 
Services Key 
Controls

Head of 
Financial 
Services 
PSPS

Purchase Order exemption list be 
reviewed and updated where 
agreed

Important Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

31/07/2019 31/03/2020 On 14 Aug 2019 the FinVis20 
Project Board who are 
overseeing the implementation 
of the new finance ledger 
system (which includes S151 
representation) agreed to 
implement a 'No PO No Pay' 
policy alongside the 
implementation of the system.

As part of the implementation a 
fundamental review of the 
existing PO Exemption list will 
be completed to determine 
which of the existing 
exemptions will remain with 
additional challenge to ensure 
that any exemptions are by 
exception only.

Financial 
Services Key 
Controls 

Head of 
Financial 
Services 
PSPS

A review is currently underway of all 
fees and charges across the 
organisation. This is a combined 
approach with PSPS Finance. A 
schedule will be created and will be 
approved by Cabinet and Council in 
due course. 
As these fees and charges are 
rolled out across services, staff will 
be reminded to check the accuracy 
of calculations. 

Urgent Outstanding 
(extension agreed)

31/10/2019 01/04/2020 Review of Fees and Charges 
has been undertaken as part of 
the 2020/21 budget setting 
process.  A paper has been 
presented at SHDC Strategy 
Board it has been agreed that 
implementation of any changes 
will now take effect at the start 
of the next financial year rather 
than midway in 19/20. 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

1

Self-assessment of good practice

This evaluation will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the Audit Committee. This is a high-level review 
that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police. Where an Audit 
Committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice principle’s then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based 
and has in place knowledgeable membership. These are essential factors in developing an effective Audit Committee. 

Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No
Audit Committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?
2 Does the audit committee report directly to full authority?
3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s position 

statement?
4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted across the authority?
5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the requirements of good governance?
6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its performance operating satisfactorily?

Functions of the committee
7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core area identified in CIPFA’s position 

statement?
- Good governance
- Assurance framework
- Internal audit
- External audit
- Financial reporting 
- Risk management
- Value for money or best value
- Counter fraud and corruption 

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and 
that adequate consideration has been given to all core areas?

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them?

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in place to address this?

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7.



Appendix 1 

2

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not taking on any decision-making powers that are 
not in line with its core purpose?
Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the board been selected?
This should include:

- Separation from the executive
- An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership
- A size of committee that is not unwieldy
- Where independent members are used, that they have been appointed using appropriate process

13 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and skills?
14 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and training?
15 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 

found to be satisfactory?
16 Does the committee have good working relationships with key people and organisations, including external 

audit, internal audit and the chief finance officer?
17 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee provided?

Effectiveness of the committee
18 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or relying 

on its work?
19 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the organisation?
20 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of weakness?

P
age 54



Appendix 1 

3

Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

This assessment tool helps Audit Committee members to consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be 
considered effective, the Audit Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements.

Assessment Key:

5 Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively supporting the improvement across all aspects of 
this area. The improvements made are clearly identifiable.

4 Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively supporting improvement across some aspects of this 
area.

3 The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area. There is some evidence that demonstrates their 
impact but there are also significant gaps.

2 There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the impact of this support is limited.

1 no evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in this area. 

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Self-evaluation examples, areas of strength & weakness Assessment 1-5

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making
Contributing to the 
development of an effective 
control environment
Supporting the establishment 
of arrangements for the 

P
age 55



Appendix 1 

4

governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks
Advising on the adequacy of 
the assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively
Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence
Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements
Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money
Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks

P
age 56



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Christine Marshall - Executive Director Commercialisation and Section 151 
Officer

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 14th November 2019
Council – 27th November 2019

(Author: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (Public Sector Partnership 
Services Ltd (PSPSL))) 

Subject: Mid Term Treasury Report 2019/20 

Purpose: To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council 
as at 30th September 2019.

Recommendations: 

1 That Governance and Audit Committee note this report, the treasury activity as detailed in 
Appendix A and the economic update from Link Asset Services at Appendix B and make 
any comments for consideration by Council at their meeting on 27th November 2019.

2 Approve the amendment to the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to add Parish 
Councils in the table of “Non-Specified Investments with Maturities in Excess of 1 Year” as 
detailed in Paragraph 1.6 below. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA), 
issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2019/20, all local 
authorities are required to prepare a Capital Strategy which is intended to provide the 
following: - 

• a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 
• the implications for future financial sustainability 

A report setting out our Capital Strategy was taken to the full council as part of the budget 
setting report on 27th February 2019. 

1.2 Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; 
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the 
year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure 
this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising 
investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8.



capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives.

1.3 The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership Services 
Ltd on behalf of the Council.

1.4 This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017).  The primary requirements are as 
follows:

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;

• Receipt by full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report (this report) and an Annual Report 
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year;

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions; and 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee.

1.5 Attached for scrutiny at Appendix A is the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy update and at Appendix B an economic 
update from Link Asset Services to enable Governance and Audit to make any comments 
for consideration by Council at their meeting on 27th November 2019.

The mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following:

• An economic update for the 2019/20 financial year to 30th September 2019;
• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy;
• The Council’s capital expenditure as set out in the capital strategy and prudential 

indicators;
• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2019/20;
• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2019/20;
• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2019/20;
• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2019/20.

1.6 At a meeting of the Cabinet on 29th October 2019 a proposed Protocol was agreed in 
relation to the South Holland Community Reserve of £500k which will be used to provide 
loans to Parish Councils for capital works and/or projects.

These loans will be available for up to 15 years at a rate of 1% above the Bank of England 
Base Rate (currently 0.75%).

It is proposed to amend the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to add Parish 
Councils in the table of “Non-Specified Investments with Maturities in Excess of 1 Year”.

Page 58



2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 As the report is mainly an update report there are no alternative options presented.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2019/20. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to the minutes being submitting to Council for approval.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 This Council is required to produce a mid-term treasury report to comply with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017. The report has no implications which 
would affect the constitution and does not therefore warrant a further change in the 
constitution.

5.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital 
expenditure and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework 
and are therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Financial

5.2.1 This mid-term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month of the 
2019/20 financial year.

5.2.2 The Council held £44.554m of investments and £3.194m of loans to Welland Homes as at 
30 September 2019 (£41.055m and £2.880m as at 31 March 2019). The investment 
portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 1.157% against a benchmark of 
0.661% (average 3 month LIBID).

5.2.3 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2019/20 is £519,700 (General Fund 
£358,500, Housing Revenue Account £161,200) and performance for the year to date is 
£266,187 which is broadly in line with the profiled budget.  The outturn is also likely to be 
broadly in line with budget.

5.3   Risk Management

5.3.1   The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.

5.4   Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.4.1   The report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to the minutes of this meeting 
being submitted to Council.

5.4.2   Link Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

Page 59



6.1 None.
 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1   CPI – Consumer Price Index

7.2   CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

7.3 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement

7.4 EU – European Union

7.5 GDP – Gross Domestic Product

7.6 HRA – Housing Revenue Account

7.7 LIBID – London Inter Bank Bid (Investment Rate)

7.8 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee

7.9 PFM - PFM Financial Advisors LLC

7.10 PSPSL – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd

7.11 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board

7.12 TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement

7.13 UKMBA – UK Municipal Bonds Agency

Background papers:-

a) SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2019/20.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (PSPSL)
Telephone Number: 01507 613248
Email: sean.howsam@pspsl.co.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A - Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy Update 
2019/20.

Appendix B – Economic Update (from Link Asset Services)

Page 60

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Update 
2019/20

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2019/20 was approved by 
Council on 27th February 2019.

At a meeting of the Cabinet on 29th October 2019 a proposed Protocol was agreed in 
relation to the South Holland Community Reserve of £500k which will be used to provide 
loans to Parish Councils for capital works and/or projects.  

These loans will be available for up to 15 years at a rate of 1% above the Bank of England 
Base Rate (currently 0.75%).

It is proposed to amend the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to add Parish 
Councils in the table of “Non-Specified Investments with Maturities in Excess of 1 Year”. This 
addition will read as follows:

Category Minimum 
Credit 

Criteria

Use Max % of 
non-specified 
investments

Maximum 
maturity 
period

Parish Councils (SHDC Community 
Reserve)

N/A In-house 10% 15 Year

The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)
This part of the report is structured to update:

 The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
 How these plans are being financed;
 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 
   indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and
 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure
The following table shows the revised estimates and financing of capital expenditure and the 
changes since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget. It also highlights the 
original supported and unsupported elements of the capital programme, and the expected 
financing arrangements of this capital expenditure.

Page 61



APPENDIX A

*Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as capital expenditure 
on investment properties, loans to third parties etc.

The General Fund capital expenditure programme has increased from an original budget of 
£6.014m to £12.255m. The key items that have resulted in this increase are as follows:

 Capital Acquisitions for Growth and Commercialisations £895k
 Operational Acquisitions £2.5m
 Food Enterprise Zone £800k
 Housing Infrastructure Funding £1m

The borrowing need shown in the above table is the Council’s purchase of an additional 
equity stake in Welland Homes and the loans made to Welland Homes. This capital 
expenditure has not been financed and therefore creates a borrowing requirement. Rather 
than take out external borrowing, the Council is utilising its cash balances and internally 
borrowing to finance the capital expenditure.

Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 
External Debt and the Operational Boundary.

The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing 
for a capital purpose. It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is 
termed the Operational Boundary.

Capital Expenditure 2019-20
Original

Programme
£’000

2019-20
Latest 

Approved
£’000

Actual
As At

30-09-19
£’000

2019-20
Forecast 
Outturn

£’000
Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 12,532 10,207 3,123 9,908

General Fund 1,530 6,850 770 6,782
Commercial activities/non- 
financial investments * 4,484 5,405 1,320 4,161

Total spend 18,546 22,462 5,213 20,851
Financed by:
Capital receipts 728 793 238 793
Capital grants and 
Contributions

1,880 2,203 833 2,203

Major Repairs Reserve 7,552 4,878 2,545 4,878
Direct Revenue Funding 5,549 9,146 515 8,779
Total financing 15,709 17,020 4,131 16,653
Borrowing need 2,837 5,442 1,082 4,198

Page 62



APPENDIX A

Limits to Borrowing Activity

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the 
medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.  
Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the 
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and next two financial 
years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council 
has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this 
proves prudent.

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) reports that no difficulties 
are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator. 

2019-20
Original 
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

2019-20
Latest 

Approved
For Year End

£’000

Position
As At

30-09-19
£’000

2019-20
Forecast
 Outturn

For Year End
£’000

Prudential Indicator – CFR
CFR – housing         68,439   68,439   68,439    68,439
CFR – non housing           1,440     1,440 1,440      1,440
Commercial activities/
non-financial investments

         
          6,952   12,394

  
  8,034    11,150

Total CFR         76,831   82,273   77,913    81,029

Net movement in CFR           2,837     5,442 1,082      4,198

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / Operational Boundary
Borrowing  67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456

Other long term liabilities 0 0           0 0

Total debt  31 March 67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456

Approved Operational 
Boundary 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000

2019-20
Original 
Estimate
For Year 

End
£’000

2019-20
Revised
Estimate
For Year 

End
£’000

Position
As At

30/09/19
£’000

2019-20
Forecast
 Outturn
For Year 

End
£’000

Gross borrowing 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456
Less investments (25,835) (25,735) (44,544) (27,346)
Net borrowing 41,621 41,721 22,912 40,110
CFR (year-end position) 76,831 82,273 77,913 81,029

Page 63



APPENDIX A

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised 
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set 
and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be 
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 
maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.

The limit of £1m for long term liabilities shown above provides headroom for the Council to 
take out finance leases for capital assets rather than outright purchase. Prior to taking out a 
finance lease, a full option appraisal would be carried out to ensure it is the most cost 
effective way of financing the capital expenditure.

Investment Portfolio 2019/20

In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s 
risk appetite.  It is a very difficult investment market in terms of earning the level of interest 
rates commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the current 
0.75% Bank Rate.  The continuing potential for a re-emergence of a Eurozone sovereign 
debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term strategy.  Given this 
risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank Rate are likely to be gradual and 
unlikely to return to the levels seen in previous decades, investment returns are likely to 
remain low. 

Authorised limit for external debt 2019-20
Original 
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

Position
As
At

30/09/19
£’000

2019-20
Revised
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

Borrowing 85,000 85,000 85,000

Other long term liabilities   1,000   1,000   1,000

Commercial activities/non-financial 
investments

5,000 5,000 5,000

Total 91,000 91,000 91,000

Page 64



APPENDIX A

The Council held £44.554m of investments and £3.194m of loans to Welland Homes as at 30 September 2019 (£41.055m and £2.880m as at 
31 March 2019). The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 1.157% against a benchmark of 0.661% (average 3 month 
LIBID). Deposits held excluding accrued interest were as follows:

Institution Investment
Type

Start 
Date

Maturity
Date

Rate/
Return 

%

As at
31-03-19

£’000

As at
30-09-19

£’000
UK Municipal Bonds Agency  Equity n/a n/a n/a      50      50
Welland Homes Equity n/a n/a n/a 1,530 1,994
South Holland Community Housing Company Equity n/a n/a n/a 1,000 1,000
Lloyds Bank Current Account Instant Access n/a n/a 0.65        0    112
Handelsbanken (AA) Instant Access n/a n/a 0.67 1,975 4,328
CCLA Money Market Fund Instant Access n/a n/a 0.73 3,000 8,070
National Westminster Bank (A+) Certificate of Deposit 19/06/18 19/06/19 0.93 2,500 0
Lancashire County Council Time Deposit 03/09/18 02/09/19 1.10 3,000 0
Bayerische Landesbank (A-) Time Deposit 01/11/18 01/05/19 1.01 3,000 0
Toronto Dominion Bank (AA-) Certificate of Deposit 07/11/18 06/11/19 1.16 2,500 2,500
Goldman Sachs International Bank (A) Time Deposit 13/12/18 13/06/19 1.075 3,000 0
Rabobank (AA-) Certificate of Deposit 19/12/18 18/12/19 1.14 3,000 3,000
Standard Chartered (A+) Time Deposit 16/01/19 15/07/19 1.01 3,000 0
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank (A+) Certificate of Deposit 31/01/19 31/01/20 1.12 3,000 3,000
Lloyds Bank (A) Time Deposit 07/02/19 21/11/19 1.07 2,500 2,500
Australia & New Zealand Bank (AA-) Time Deposit 27/02/19 26/02/20 1.14 2,500 2,500
Coventry Building Society (A-) Time Deposit 27/08/19 27/02/19 0.96 3,000 0
Close Brothers (A) Time Deposit 15/03/19 16/09/19 1.10 2,500 0
Lloyds Bank (A) Time Deposit 12/04/19 09/04/20 1.25 0 2,500
Goldman Sachs International Bank (A) Time Deposit 13/06/19 13/12/19 0.96 0 3,000
National Westminster Bank (A+) Certificate of Deposit 19/06/19 17/06/20 1.00 0 5,000
Coventry Building Society (A-) Time Deposit 29/08/19 28/02/20 0.83 0 3,000
Goldman Sachs International Bank (A) Time Deposit 29/08/19 28/02/20 0.905 0 2,000
TOTAL     41,055   44,554

P
age 65



APPENDIX A

In addition to the investments listed, the Council has issued four loans to Welland Homes 
totalling £3.194m at a rate of 3.5% which are classified as Long Term Debtors. The Council 
started issuing these loans to Welland Homes in March 2017 and continued through to the 
present day as the housing projects have progressed. 

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) confirms that the approved 
limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 
2019/20.

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2019/20 is £519,700 (GF £358,500, HRA 
£161,200) and performance for the year to date is £266,187 which is broadly in line with the 
profiled budget.  The outturn is also likely to be broadly in line with budget.

The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Link Asset Services 
counterparty risk matrix.  This matrix gives recommended maximum investment durations for 
each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by the major credit rating agencies 
and also takes into account credit default swap prices.

Investment Counterparty Criteria

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is meeting the 
requirement of the treasury management function.  

Borrowing

The Council’s projected capital financing requirement (CFR) for the end of 2019/20 is 
£81.029m.  The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  
If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external 
borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance 
of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  The Council has 
borrowings of £67.456m in respect of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing 
settlement and it is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this 
financial year.

The following graph shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the year 
to 30th September 2019:

Page 66



APPENDIX A

Debt Rescheduling

The Councils external borrowing was taken out in March 2012 as part of the HRA Financing 
Reforms. Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 
climate given the consequent structure of interest rates, and following the increase in the 
margin added to gilt yields which has impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 
2010.  No debt rescheduling has therefore been undertaken to date in the current financial 
year.

In October 2019 the PWLB announced an increase of 1% on all new borrowing. This 
increase is across all loan periods and subsequently makes the cost of borrowing more 
expensive.  In relation to existing borrowing, the higher rates reduces the premature 
repayment premium payable.  

The Council’s borrowing portfolio will be kept under review following these higher rates.

OTHER 

Changes in risk policy

The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk 
management.  Where an authority changes its risk policy e.g. for moving surplus cash into or 
out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this 
change in risk policy should be brought to members’ attention in treasury management 
update reports.

There has been no change in risk policy to report.

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Update

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency (UKMBA) is owned by councils and the Local Government 
Association. South Holland DC has a £50,000 equity stake in the company.

Page 67



APPENDIX A

Its aim is to offer lower cost borrowing to councils and to secure a sustainable alternative to 
the Public Works Loan Board for council borrowing.

The UKMBA has been working with a group of interested councils to reshape the bond offer 
taking on board issues that many councils have raised in relation to the joint and several 
liability clause. Based on this work the UKMBA undertook a tender process to select an 
appropriate partner to help with the restructure. This process is now complete and PFM 
Financial Advisors LLC (PFM) were selected.

The arrangements will be cost effective and will mean that the UKMBA will very shortly be 
able to offer low cost finance on terms acceptable to councils. Finance for the transition from 
previous arrangements to this new set up has been made available through a convertible 
loan from the Local Government Association. This loan recognises the importance with 
which this initiative continues to be viewed by the sector and confidence that the agreed 
changes and appointment of PFM as the service provider will deliver success.

The ability to borrow at competitive rates is vital. The UKMBA has always had the objective 
of beating the PWLB rate and of offering an alternative route to borrowing that could be used 
in the event of changes to PWLB rules. The announcement of the increase in the PWLB rate 
in October suggests that this route is needed now.

Page 68



APPENDIX B

Economics and Interest Rates (from Link Asset Services as at 16/10/19)

ECONOMICS UPDATE

UK.  This first half year has been a time of upheaval on the political front as Theresa May resigned 
as Prime Minister to be replaced by Boris Johnson on a platform of the UK leaving the EU on or 
before 31 October, with or without a deal.  However, in September, his proroguing of Parliament 
was overturned by the Supreme Court and Parliament carried a bill to delay Brexit until 31 January 
2020 if there is no deal by 31 October. MPs also voted down holding a general election before 31 
October, though one is likely before the end of 2019. So far, there has been no majority of MPs for 
any one option to move forward on enabling Brexit to be implemented. At the time of writing the 
whole Brexit situation is highly fluid and could change radically by the day. Given these 
circumstances and the likelihood of an imminent general election, any interest rate forecasts are 
subject to material change as the situation evolves.  If the UK does soon achieve a deal on Brexit 
agreed with the EU then it is possible that growth could recover relatively quickly. The MPC could 
then need to address the issue of whether to raise Bank Rate at some point in the coming year 
when there is little slack left in the labour market; this could cause wage inflation to accelerate 
which would then feed through into general inflation.  On the other hand, if there was a no deal 
Brexit and there was a significant level of disruption to the economy, then growth could weaken 
even further than currently and the MPC would be likely to cut Bank Rate in order to support 
growth. However, with Bank Rate still only at 0.75%, it has relatively little room to make a big 
impact and the MPC would probably suggest that it would be up to the Chancellor to provide help 
to support growth by way of a fiscal boost by e.g. tax cuts, increases in the annual expenditure 
budgets of government departments and services and expenditure on infrastructure projects, to 
boost the economy.  

The first half of 2019/20 has seen UK economic growth fall as Brexit uncertainty took a toll. In its 
Inflation Report of 1 August, the Bank of England was notably downbeat about the outlook for both the 
UK and major world economies. The MPC meeting of 19 September reemphasised their concern about 
the downturn in world growth and also expressed concern that prolonged Brexit uncertainty would 
contribute to a build-up of spare capacity in the UK economy, especially in the context of a downturn in 
world growth.  This mirrored investor concerns around the world which are now expecting a significant 
downturn or possibly even a recession in some major developed economies. It was therefore no 
surprise that the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) left Bank Rate unchanged at 0.75% throughout 
2019, so far, and is expected to hold off on changes until there is some clarity on what is going to 
happen over Brexit. However, it is also worth noting that the new Prime Minister is making some 
significant promises on various spending commitments and a relaxation in the austerity programme. 
This will provide some support to the economy and, conversely, take some pressure off the MPC to cut 
Bank Rate to support growth.

As for inflation itself, Consumer Price Index (CPI) has been hovering around the Bank of England’s 
target of 2% during 2019, but fell to 1.7% in August. It is likely to remain close to 2% over the next two 
years and so it does not pose any immediate concern to the MPC at the current time. However, if there 
was a no deal Brexit, inflation could rise towards 4%, primarily as a result of imported inflation on the 
back of a weakening pound.

With regard to the labour market, despite the contraction in quarterly Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
growth of -0.2% q/q, (+1.3% y/y), in quarter 2, employment continued to rise, but at only a muted rate of 
31,000 in the three months to July after having risen by no less than 115,000 in quarter 2 itself: the latter 
figure, in particular, suggests that firms are preparing to expand output and suggests there could be a 
return to positive growth in quarter 3.  Unemployment continued at a 44 year low of 3.8% on the 
Independent Labour Organisation measure in July and the participation rate of 76.1% achieved a new 
all-time high. Job vacancies fell for a seventh consecutive month after having previously hit record 
levels.  However, with unemployment continuing to fall, this month by 11,000, employers will still be 
having difficulty filling job vacancies with suitable staff.  It was therefore unsurprising that wage inflation 
picked up to a high point of 3.9% in June before easing back slightly to 3.8% in July, (3 month average 

Page 69



APPENDIX B

regular pay, excluding bonuses).  This meant that in real terms, (i.e. wage rates higher than CPI 
inflation), earnings grew by about 2.1%. As the UK economy is very much services sector driven, an 
increase in household spending power is likely to feed through into providing some support to the overall 
rate of economic growth in the coming months. The latest GDP statistics also included a revision of the 
savings ratio from 4.1% to 6.4% which provides reassurance that consumers’ balance sheets are not 
over stretched and so will be able to support growth going forward. This would then mean that the MPC 
will need to consider carefully at what point to take action to raise Bank Rate if there is an agreed Brexit 
deal, as the recent pick-up in wage costs is consistent with a rise in core services inflation to more than 
4% in 2020. 
  
In the political arena, if there is a general election soon, this could result in a potential loosening of 
monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could rise on the expectation of a weak 
pound and concerns around inflation picking up although, conversely, a weak international backdrop 
could provide further support for low yielding government bonds and gilts.

USA.  President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy in 2018 fuelled a temporary boost in 
consumption in that year which generated an upturn in the rate of strong growth to 2.9% y/y.  
Growth in 2019 has been falling back after a strong start in quarter 1 at 3.1%, (annualised rate), to 
2.0% in quarter 2.  Quarter 3 is expected to fall further. The strong growth in employment numbers 
during 2018 has reversed into a falling trend during 2019, indicating that the economy is cooling, 
while inflationary pressures are also weakening The Fed finished its series of increases in rates to 
2.25 – 2.50% in December 2018.  In July 2019, it cut rates by 0.25% as a ‘midterm adjustment’ but 
flagged up that this was not to be seen as the start of a series of cuts to ward off a downturn in 
growth. It also ended its programme of quantitative tightening in August, (reducing its holdings of 
treasuries etc).  It then cut rates again in September to 1.75% - 2.00% and is thought likely to cut 
another 25 bps in December. Investor confidence has been badly rattled by the progressive 
ramping up of increases in tariffs President Trump has made on Chinese imports and China has 
responded with increases in tariffs on American imports.  This trade war is seen as depressing US, 
Chinese and world growth.  In the EU, it is also particularly impacting Germany as exports of goods 
and services are equivalent to 46% of total GDP. It will also impact developing countries 
dependent on exporting commodities to China.

EUROZONE.  Growth has been slowing from +1.8 % during 2018 to around half of that in 2019.  
Growth was +0.4% q/q (+1.2% y/y) in quarter 1 and then fell to +0.2% q/q (+1.0% y/y) in quarter 2; 
there appears to be little upside potential to the growth rate in the rest of 2019. German GDP 
growth fell to -0.1% in quarter 2; industrial production was down 4% y/y in June with car production 
down 10% y/y.  Germany would be particularly vulnerable to a no deal Brexit depressing exports 
further and if President Trump imposes tariffs on EU produced cars.  The European Central Bank 
(ECB) ended its programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December 2018, which 
meant that the central banks in the US, UK and EU had all ended the phase of post financial crisis 
expansion of liquidity supporting world financial markets by purchases of debt.  However, the 
downturn in EZ growth in the second half of 2018 and into 2019, together with inflation falling well 
under the upper limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep it near to 2%), has 
prompted the ECB to take new measures to stimulate growth.  At its March meeting it said that it 
expected to leave interest rates at their present levels “at least through the end of 2019”, but that 
was of little help to boosting growth in the near term. Consequently, it announced a third round of 
TLTROs; this provides banks with cheap borrowing every three months from September 2019 until 
March 2021 which means that, although they will have only a two-year maturity, the Bank is 
making funds available until 2023, two years later than under its previous policy. As with the last 
round, the new TLTROs will include an incentive to encourage bank lending, and they will be 
capped at 30% of a bank’s eligible loans. However, since then, the downturn in EZ and world 
growth has gathered momentum so at its meeting on 12 September, it cut its deposit rate further 
into negative territory, from -0.4% to -0.5%, and announced a resumption of quantitative easing 
purchases of debt.  It also increased the maturity of the third round of TLTROs from two to three 
years. However, it is doubtful whether this loosening of monetary policy will have much impact on 

Page 70



APPENDIX B

growth and unsurprisingly, the ECB stated that governments will need to help stimulate growth by 
fiscal policy. On the political front, Austria, Spain and Italy are in the throes of forming coalition 
governments with some unlikely combinations of parties i.e. this raises questions around their likely 
endurance. The recent results of two German state elections will put further pressure on the frail 
German CDU/SDP coalition government.

CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated rounds of 
central bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major progress still needs to be made to 
eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of 
non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems. Progress also still needs to be made to 
eliminate excess industrial capacity and to switch investment from property construction and 
infrastructure to consumer goods production. The trade war with the US does not appear currently 
to have had a significant effect on GDP growth as some of the impact of tariffs has been offset by 
falls in the exchange rate and by transhipping exports through other countries, rather than directly 
to the US.

JAPAN - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get inflation up 
to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on 
fundamental reform of the economy. 

WORLD GROWTH.  The trade war between the US and China is a major concern to financial 
markets and is depressing worldwide growth, as any downturn in China will spill over into 
impacting countries supplying raw materials to China. Concerns are focused on the synchronised 
general weakening of growth in the major economies of the world compounded by fears that there 
could even be a recession looming up in the US, though this is probably overblown. These 
concerns have resulted in government bond yields in the developed world falling significantly 
during 2019. If there were a major worldwide downturn in growth, central banks in most of the 
major economies will have limited ammunition available, in terms of monetary policy measures, 
when rates are already very low in most countries, (apart from the US), and there are concerns 
about how much distortion of financial markets has already occurred with the current levels of 
quantitative easing purchases of debt by central banks. The latest PMI survey statistics of 
economic health for the US, UK, EU and China have all been sub 50 which gives a forward 
indication of a downturn in growth; this confirms investor sentiment that the outlook for growth 
during the rest of this financial year is weak.

Page 71



APPENDIX B

INTEREST RATE FORECASTS

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following forecast as at 
16/10/19. 

This forecast includes the increase in margin over gilt yields of 100bps introduced on 9.10.19.

 Dec-
19

Mar-
20

Jun-
20

Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Jun-
21

Sep-
21 Dec-21 Mar-

22
Bank 
Rate 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25%

3
 Month 
LIBID**

0.70% 0.70% 0.70% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20%

6 
Month 
LIBID**

0.80% 0.80% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40%

12 Month 
LIBID** 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.30% 1.40% 1.50% 1.60%

5yr 
PWLB*

rate
2.30% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10%

10yr 
PWLB* 

rate
2.60% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40%

25yr 
PWLB* 

rate
3.30% 3.40% 2.50% 3.60% 3.70% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.00% 4.00%

50yr 
PWLB* 

rate
3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.60% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 3.90%

*  PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
**LIBID - London Interbank Bid Rate (investment rates)

The above forecasts have been based on an assumption that there is some sort of muddle through to 
an agreed deal on Brexit at some point in time. Given the current level of uncertainties, this is a huge 
assumption and so forecasts may need to be materially reassessed in the light of events over the next 
few weeks or months. 

It has been little surprise that the MPC has left Bank Rate unchanged at 0.75% so far in 2019 due to the 
ongoing uncertainty over Brexit.  In its meeting on 1 August, the MPC became more dovish as it was 
more concerned about the outlook for both the global and domestic economies. That’s shown in the 
policy statement, based on an assumption that there is an agreed deal on Brexit, where the suggestion 
that rates would need to rise at a “gradual pace and to a limited extent” is now also conditional on “some 
recovery in global growth”. Brexit uncertainty has had a dampening effect on UK GDP growth in 2019, 
especially around mid-year. If there were a no deal Brexit, then it is likely that there will be a cut or cuts 
in Bank Rate to help support economic growth.  The September MPC meeting sounded even more 
concern about world growth and the effect that prolonged Brexit uncertainty is likely to have on growth.

Bond yields/PWLB rates - There has been much speculation recently that we are currently in a bond 
market bubble.  However, given the context that there are heightened expectations that the US could be 
heading for a recession, and a general background of a downturn in world economic growth, together 
with inflation generally at low levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued, conditions are 

Page 72



APPENDIX B

ripe for low bond yields.  While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over 
the last thirty years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers: this means that central banks do not 
need to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has 
pulled down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over the last thirty 
years.  We have therefore seen over the last year, many bond yields up to ten years in the Eurozone 
actually turn negative. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US 
whereby ten year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a 
recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be expected to 
be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings and so 
selling out of equities.  However, stock markets are also currently at high levels as some investors have 
focused on chasing returns in the context of dismal ultra-low interest rates on cash deposits.  

What we have seen during the last half year is a near halving of longer term PWLB rates to completely 
unprecedented historic low levels. There is though, an expectation that financial markets have gone too 
far in their fears about the degree of the downturn in US and world growth.  If, as expected, the US only 
suffers a mild downturn in growth, bond markets in the US are likely to sell off and that would be 
expected to put upward pressure on bond yields, not only in the US, but due to a correlation between 
US treasuries and UK gilts, which at various times has been strong but at other times weaker, in the UK. 
However, forecasting the timing of this and how strong the correlation is likely to be, is very difficult to 
forecast with any degree of confidence. 

One potential danger that may be lurking in investor minds is that Japan has become mired in a twenty 
year bog of failing to get economic growth and inflation up off the floor, despite a combination of massive 
monetary and fiscal stimulus by both the central bank and government. Investors could be fretting that 
this condition might become contagious.  

Another danger is that unconventional monetary policy post 2008, (ultra-low interest rates plus 
quantitative easing), may end up doing more harm than good through prolonged use. Low interest rates 
have encouraged a debt fuelled boom which now makes it harder for economies to raise interest rates. 
Negative interest rates could damage the profitability of commercial banks and so impair their ability to 
lend and / or push them into riskier lending. Banks could also end up holding large amounts of their 
government’s bonds and so create a potential doom loop. (A doom loop would occur where the credit 
rating of the debt of a nation was downgraded which would cause bond prices to fall, causing losses on 
debt portfolios held by banks and insurers, so reducing their capital and forcing them to sell bonds – 
which, in turn, would cause further falls in their prices etc.). In addition, the financial viability of pension 
funds could be damaged by low yields on holdings of bonds.

The balance of risks to the UK

 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably to the downside due 
to the weight of all the uncertainties over Brexit, as well as a softening global economic 
picture, as well as a softening global economic picture.

 The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates are broadly 
similarly to the downside.

One risk that is both an upside and downside risk is that all central banks are now working in very 
different economic conditions than before the 2008 financial crash. There has been a major increase in 
consumer and other debt due to the exceptionally low levels of borrowing rates that have prevailed for 
eleven years since 2008. This means that the neutral rate of interest in an economy, (i.e. the rate that is 
neither expansionary nor deflationary), is difficult to determine definitively in this new environment, 
although central banks have made statements that they expect it to be much lower than before 2008. 
Central banks could, therefore, over or under-do increases in central interest rates.

Page 73



APPENDIX B

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include: 

 Brexit – if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a major downturn in the rate of 
growth.

 Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to raise Bank Rate 
and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we currently 
anticipate.

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis.  In 2018, Italy was a major concern due to 
having a populist coalition government which made a lot of anti-austerity and anti-EU noise.  
However, in September 2019 there was a major change in the coalition governing Italy which 
has brought to power a much more EU friendly government; this has eased the pressure on 
Italian bonds. Only time will tell whether this new unlikely alliance of two very different parties will 
endure.

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks, particularly Italian banks.

 German minority government.  In the German general election of September 2017, Angela 
Merkel’s CDU party was left in a vulnerable minority position dependent on the fractious support 
of the SPD party, as a result of the rise in popularity of the anti-immigration AfD party. Then in 
October 2018, the results of the Bavarian and Hesse state elections radically undermined the 
SPD party and showed a sharp fall in support for the CDU. As a result, the SPD had a major 
internal debate as to whether it could continue to support a coalition that is so damaging to its 
electoral popularity. After the result of the Hesse state election, Angela Merkel announced that 
she would not stand for re-election as CDU party leader at her party’s convention in December 
2018. However, this makes little practical difference as she has continued as Chancellor, though 
more recently concerns have arisen over her health.

 Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands and Belgium all 
have vulnerable minority governments dependent on coalitions which could prove fragile.

 Italy, Austria, the Czech Republic and Hungary now form a strongly anti-immigration bloc within 
the EU.  There has also been rising anti-immigration sentiment in Germany and France.

 There are concerns around the level of US corporate debt which has swollen massively during 
the period of low borrowing rates in order to finance mergers and acquisitions. This has resulted 
in the debt of many large corporations being downgraded to a BBB credit rating, close to junk 
status. Indeed, 48% of total investment grade corporate debt is rated at BBB. If such 
corporations fail to generate profits and cash flow to reduce their debt levels as expected, this 
could tip their debt into junk ratings which will increase their cost of financing and further 
negatively impact profits and cash flow.

 Geopolitical risks, for example in North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle East, which 
could lead to increasing safe haven flows. 

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates

 Brexit – if agreement was reached all round that removed all threats of economic and 
political disruption between the EU and the UK.

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and, 
therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK economy, 
which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we 
currently expect.

 UK inflation, whether domestically generated or imported, returning to sustained 
significantly higher levels causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

Page 74



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 14 November 2019 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meeting dates for the 2019/20 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered.

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

Page 75

Agenda Item 9.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 76



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2019/20

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

24 October 2019 Statement of accounts and audit report.  
To include 1) ISA  260 Report 18/19; 2) 
Annual Governance Statement; 3) 
Audited 18/19 Financial Statements 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
and Section 151 
Officer

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 19/20 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements.

Half-yearly

Q2 2019-20 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

16 January 2020 Grant Claims 18/19 External Audit 
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 External Audit 
(Ernst & Young)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

P
age 77



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 20/21

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

12 March 2020 Audit Plan External Audit 
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2019-20

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2020/21

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Financial Statements 2019/20 
Accounting Policies 

Section 151 Officer Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual

Q3 2019-20 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Training requirements – consideration to 
be given training requirements for the 
Committee

P
age 78



The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.  

 External Audit (Ernst & Young) – Local Government Audit Committee Briefings are produced quarterly.  Where its publication coincides 
with a meeting, it will be added to the agenda for that meeting.  If not, it will be circulated outside of the meeting to members of the 
Committee.

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director of Strategy and Governance 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – Thursday 6th November 2019

Author: Corey Gooch – Senior Change, Innovation and Performance 
Business Partner

Subject: Quarter 2 Risk Report

Purpose: To provide an update to the committee on the progress of the 
Council’s identified strategic risks

Recommendation(s): 

1) To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The report presents the status of the Council’s 19 identified strategic risks as of the end 
of quarter 2 19/20

1.2 Strategic risks are captured within the councils Risk management system, which is 
available to the Executive Management Team (EMT) and reviewed by EMT quarterly.  
In addition, risks are reviewed monthly at the internal Performance, Risk & Audit 
Board chaired by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.3 Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with responsible members of the 
Executive Management Team.  The strategic risk register includes 19 strategic risks 
(see Appendix A).  These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic 
direction of the council, rather than risks that affect discreet service areas.

1.4 By their nature, strategic risks have been identified as having the potential to cause 
organisation wide impact and will often cover a number of key services and 
departments. 

1.5 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix and is comparable 
with best practice in other similar organisations. The risk matrix provides a 
comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The 
matrix results in a numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring 
with the likelihood of it happening.

1.6 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating

High
Medium
Low

Page 81

Agenda Item 10.



1.7 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks 
currently reported at each score 

1.8 There are 19 strategic risks included within the Q2 19/20 Risk Report, three more 
than at the end of Q1 19/20. 

Risks are made up of the following -

Level of identified risk Q2 19/20 Q1 19/20
High 3 0
Medium 15 14
Low 1 2

 

As identified by the table above, there have been a number of changes to report in 
this quarter, the number of risks has also increased, the new risks featured on this 
report are listed as the below.

 Emerging Government Policy
 Temporary Accommodation Spend
 Pay Claim for National Employers

Further details of the new risks highlighted for this quarter can be found in the strategic 
register (Appendix A) including current mitigations and future planned works around 
these risks.

Members will note a key change to the risk register in terms of layout for this quarter, 
following on from the request at the last meeting of Governance and audit the risk 
register has been amended to highlight previous quarter scores in order for the 
committee to track the progress of each risk in more detail.

Within the high-risk category, the following 3 risks have been identified, with 2 
previously being at medium and 1 being a new risk highlighted within the Q1 report.

The first high level risk to highlight within this report is on the Pay claim for national 
employers which has been lodged by the NJC Trade Unions for 2020, the pay claim 
is for a 10% pay increase for local government staff as well as increases in annual 

Page 82



leave and a two-hour reduction in the working week, the risk of this claim coming 
through would have significant financial impact but would also affect council service 
delivery and potentially reputation. Consultations on this pay claim are underway; the 
executive management team are working closely with the HR team to keep a 
watching brief on this as it develops.

Latest information on this risk following a pay briefing in September is that it is likely 
a ‘deal’ be completed until Spring/Summer next year. However as the main risks to 
SHDC are the proposals for a pay increase (unions requesting 10%), South Holland 
District Council (and all other LA's in the East Midlands region) have budgeted for a 
2% increase from 1 April 2020.  Unions have also requested a decrease of working 
week to 35 hours from 37 hours.  We will continue to monitor the situation and update 
HR Board/EMT/CMT and this risk, as events evolve however, it has been deemed to 
keep this risk at a high level until we get further direction on this.

The two other high risks currently on the register fall under the housing service 
provision, firstly the risk, which is focused on the service impact of the homelessness 
reduction act and secondly the risk on the temporary accommodation spend. 
Following the Homelessness Reduction Act, which came into effect in 2018, the costs 
of providing temporary accommodation have risen significantly. The forecast reflects 
the impact for the first two quarter only of £280k. If this trend continued and there 
were no mitigating actions, the pressure on the Homelessness Budget by 31st March 
would be circa £560k

However, there are a number of steps being taken to mitigate this: -

 

 The primary task is homelessness prevention, which would reduce the need 
for short term bed and breakfast. 

 Secondly steps need to be taken to ensure all those who can make a 
contribution to the accommodation costs do so.

 Thirdly, the backlog of claimants need to be reduced, which is part of a larger 
long term project.

 Discretionary Housing Payment grant is being reviewed to see how much of 
this can be used to support homelessness costs.

 Finally, options are being explored to increase our provision of temporary 
accommodation.

Following the introduction of these mitigation measures, we have already seen a 50% 
reduction in the use of B&Bs / hotels for emergency accommodation.  Conservatively 
we can expect to reduce the forecast overspend from £560k to £450k but it is intended 
to bring this figure down further.  

Within the medium risk category the key change to highlight within this quarter would 
be around the risk of failing to deliver the councils corporate priorities, this risk has 
been raised only slight in likelihood as the Change, innovation and performance team 
are currently reviewing the corporate delivery plan with all services and the executive 

Page 83



management team, the main purpose of this work is to track progress on the actions 
that sit within the corporate plan. Once complete, this work will show which areas of 
the corporate plan we are on track to deliver and which areas are behind target or 
work is required to meet the councils over-arching objective. Due to this work being 
currently underway the risk has been raised slightly in likelihood as until this is 
complete we will not have as clear of a picture we would like as to which objectives 
will be delivered. It is important to highlight with the previous statement that the team 
does not anticipate any key issues and there have been no areas of concerns raised.

Finally whilst the risk to deliver the local plan has not changed in scoring, this risk has 
been signed off as fully mitigated by the executive manager for Growth, this is due to 
the fact the local plan has been submitted and approved, however in place of this risk 
It is proposed for Q3 that a new risk supersedes this risk which will be focused on the 
failure to maintain a 5 year land supply and to meet the housing delivery test, The 
HDT works by comparing how many homes have been delivered over the previous 
three years to the number of homes required. Therefore monitoring these areas in 
this new risk going forward will ensure any issues within the now adopted local plan 
and its 5 year land supply are highlighted accordingly.

All remaining risks although reviewed remain static from Q1; these include. 

The Councils medium term financial plan including the uncertainty surrounding the 
future of the Governments Settlement Funding will remain static until the outcome of 
the government’s reviews are known and understood.  

The impact of business rate appeals and county council budget reductions, these 
risks remain the same as the NHS appeal is still ongoing and will not be altered until 
the outcome is determined, additionally there has been no further update from county 
council in regards to budget reductions.

With regards to the risk around GDPR implementation there is good progress being 
made with Audit recommendations and with the continued implementation of the 
Project Plan.  Breaches appear to be reducing and further training of Data Champions 
has taken place.  Provided we continue in this positive direction then it is anticipated 
that the risks may be deemed to be reduced by the next period.

Our contracts monitoring risk remains the same as last quarter as the service 
continues to maintain a watching brief in relation to Brexit developments and what 
impact this may have on our contracted supplier supply chains.

The risk around PSPS failure to deliver core services also remains stable as the 
PSPS Client lead is now Mark Stinson (Executive Manager Governance) following on 
from the retirement of the previous client lead Phil Adams, At this time there are no 
changes to this risk to highlight but as regular meetings take place and the new client 
leads understanding of the PSPS service provision develops they will review this risk 
further to highlight any issues etc. if appropriate.

Following on from last Governance and Audit committee members queried the risk 
around the business continuity plan, following on from a review of this risk with 
executive manager for place, this risk has still been deemed as valid as there will 
always be risks considered when implementing a business continuity plan in the event 

Page 84



of any emergency, that being said in terms of sign off the business continuity plan is 
reviewed on a quarterly basis.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the contents of this report are noted

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 None 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To ensure that the identified Strategic Risks are properly monitored and reviewed in 
accordance with the Corporate Risk Policy. 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1      Constitution & Legal

 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

5.2       Corporate Priorities

The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3 Financial

The report contains information on Council’s financial risks which does convey 
some information relating to financial matters.

5.4 Reputation

Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of 
this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management

Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect 
Council interests.

5.6 Staffing

The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

6.0         WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1         No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0         ACRONYMS 

Page 85



PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority
PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Services
SLA’s- Service level agreements
GDPR- General Data Protection Regulations
CIP- Change, Innovation & Performance

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs  – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 07870835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Corey Gooch – Senior Change, Innovation & Performance 

Business Partner

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A
Appendix B 

Quarter 2 Risk Register
Quarter 2 Risk Register (below the line)

Page 86

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


SHDC Strategic Risk Report with targets

Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Impact of 
Homelessne
ss Reduction 
Act

The implementation 
of the new act places 
additional burdens 
on SHDC which may 
mean a reduced 
ability within the 
service to adhere to 
the act due to an 
unpredictable 
increase of persons 
approaching the 
housing options 
service. Capacity 
may be impacted by 
increased volumes of 
homeless 
applications, 
increased time 
needed to manage 
each case in order to 
fulfil the 
requirements of the 
new legislation and 
risk that the 
expansion of the duty 
could lead to a 
serious shortfall in 

•         
Implementation of 
specialist Jigsaw 
Software to case 
manage under 
provisions of 
HRA 2017 
•         Increase in 
establishment of 
Housing Options 
Officer in SHDC 
as part of Place 
Review 
•         Additional 
experienced 
temporary staff 
from February 
2018 to triage 
cases 
•         Increase of 
admin support to 
Housing Options 
Team to better 
utilise specialist 
staff to focus on 
complex cases 

4 4

Risk increased due to 
the current financial 
impact of B&B 
accommodation.

• Following the 
Homelessness 
Reduction Act which 
came into effect in 
2018, the costs of 
providing temporary 
accommodation have 
risen significantly. The 
forecast reflects the 
impact for the first two 
quarter only of £280k. 
If this trend continued 
and there were no 
mitigating actions, the 
pressure on the 
Homelessness Budget 
by 31st March would 
be circa £560k.

However, there are a 
number of steps being 

P
age 87



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

available temporary 
housing options to 
accommodate 
homeless individuals 
and families 

•         Training in 
new duties to be 
ongoing (initial 
joint SHDC/BDC 
training held in 
January 2018) 
•         Utilisation 
of £62k New 
Burdens funding 
•         
Identification of 
options within 
SHDC stock 
•         
Identification of 
private sector 
options within 
both districts 
•         Work with 
partners to open 
other potential 
options 

taken to mitigate this: 

• The primary task is 
homelessness 
prevention, which 
would reduce the need 
for short term bed and 
breakfast.
  •  Secondly steps 
need to be taken to 
ensure all those who 
can make a 
contribution to the 
accommodation costs 
do so.
  •  Thirdly, the 
backlog of claimants 
need to be reduced, 
which is part of a 
larger long term 
project
  •  Discretionary 
Housing Payment 
grant is being 
reviewed to see how 
much of this can be 
used to support 
homelessness costs.
  •  Finally, options are 
being explored to 
increase our provision 
of temporary 
accommodation.

P
age 88



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Following the 
introduction of these 
mitigation measures 
we have already seen 
a 50% reduction in the 
use of B&Bs / hotels 
for emergency 
accommodation.  
Conservatively we can 
expect to reduce the 
forecast overspend 
from £560k to £450k 
but it is intended to 
bring this figure down 
further.  

Temporary 
accommodat
ion

Significant increase 
in the use of 
temporary 
accommodation 
following a legislative 
change, the 
Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2018. 
Historically 
applicants must 
satisfy the local 
authority that they 
are eligible, 
homeless and in 
priority need to be 
owed a duty of 
temporary 
accommodation. 

• In hours – any 
persons needing 
approval for B&B 
can be emailed 
over to the 
Housing Options 
Manager with the 
details of the 
person up to 
4:45pm. It is 
expected to view 
the notes and 
documentation (if 
any) on Jigsaw. 
Officers will have 
applied the 
reason to believe 
test on 

4 4
The latest note for this 
risk is covered as 
above

P
age 89



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Now applicants need 
only give the 
Authority reason to 
believe. This is a 
significantly lower 
threshold. 
Additionally, 
applicants were 
eligible for 
assistance 28 days 
before becoming 
homeless, this has 
now been increased 
to 56 days in 
prevention and 56 
days in relief.  
 
The Authority has 
provision of 
temporary 
accommodation, 
approximately 22 
units. However, this 
is vastly insufficient, 
resulting in heavy 
reliance on B&B 
accommodation. 
Applicants are 
actively being moved 
into any available 
suitable 
accommodation. 
Controls how now 
been introduced to 
ensure B&B is only 

Homelessness, 
Eligibility and 
Priority Need and 
the notes and/or 
relevant 
documentation 
are there on 
Jigsaw to support 
this. Officers are 
instructed not to 
make promises to 
clients in 
advance, that 
they will be 
offered temporary 
accommodation 
without a 
managers 
approval.
• For weekends 
and/or bank 
holidays and/or 
out of hours – 
ONLY in these 
circumstances 
can an officer 
approve B&B 
accommodation 
without managers 
approval. 
However; such 
approval will 
need to be 
sought on the 
next available 

P
age 90



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

allocated where no 
other alternative 
exists. 

working day from 
a manager for 
this 
accommodation 
to continue; so 
the length of time 
of the booking 
needs to reflect 
this. This reflects 
the appreciation 
that officers may 
be limited in both 
applying the tests 
and accessing a 
manager for 
approval.
• In the absence 
of the Housing 
Options 
Manager- The 
Housing Services 
Manager, 
Business Support 
Manager or 
Housing Landlord 
Services 
Manager can 
deputise and 
issue the 
authority to 
proceed with a 
booking.
 

P
age 91



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Pay Claim 
for National 
Employers

The NJC Trade 
Unions have lodged 
the 2020 pay claim 
with the National 
Employers. The 
claim is for
 
•        a 10% pay 
increase 
•        a one-day 
increase in annual 
leave 
•        a two-hour 
reduction in the 
working week 
•        a review of 
workplace stress and 
mental health 

 
Councils will be 
consulted in the 
usual way through a 
series of regional pay 
briefings during 
September and 
October.  The East 
Midlands Pay 
roadshow event will 
take place on 12 
September in Melton 
Mowbray.  Further 
information about 
this event will be 

The PSPS 
Finance team 
have budgeted 
for a wage 
increase of 2% 
for next year, 
alongside this the 
HR manager will 
be attend pay 
briefings on this 
as it develops 
and will be 
feeding 
information back 
via HR board and 
the executive 
management 
team.

5 3

The HR manager 
attended a Pay 
Briefing in September. 
Advice from that is 
that it is highly likely 
that a 'deal' won’t be 
completed until 
Spring/Summer next 
year.  Main risks to 
SHDC are the 
proposals for a pay 
increase (unions 
requesting 10%), we 
(and all other LA's in 
the East Midlands 
region) have budgeted 
for a 2% increase from 
1 April 2020.  Unions 
have also requested a 
decrease of working 
week to 35 hours from 
37 hours.  We will 
continue to monitor 
the situation and 
update HR 
Board/EMT/CMT and 
this risk, as events 
evolve.

P
age 92



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

circulated shortly.
 
 
Whilst these pay 
challenge 
negotiations can go 
over into May, we 
would expect this to 
be agreed and have 
full details by should 
not be longer than a 
year, highest pay 
claim yet. 

Medium 
Term 
Financial 
Plan Not 
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced 
position which is 
dependant on 
delivery of further 
savings

There are a 
number of 
controls in place 
to track delivery 
including finance 
board, 
Performance, 
Risk & Audit 
Board & EMT. 
PI's are tracking 
variance from 
plan

4 3

Homelessness costs 
are an area of 
significant concern 
plus increases to base 
budget that are 
expected. 

This area is currently 
under scrutiny to 
review options for 
managing the medium 
term position. 

P
age 93



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Uncertainty 
over future 
government 
funding 
settlement

Government funding 
reductions due to a 
weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

4yr MTFP sets 
out programme to 
be free of 
reliance on RSG 
by 2019. Setting 
investment funds, 
commercial 
property and 

4 3

There is no update to 
this risks likelihood or 
impact due to there 
being no significant or 
notable changes in 
relation to the 
outcome of this 
review. This risk may 

P
age 94



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

growth to ensure 
continued 
income.
Star chamber 
exercises and 
constant forward 
looking reviews 
are now 
underway.

be altered once a 
decision in relation to 
the settlement is 
reached.

P
age 95



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Impact of 
business 
rate appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline income. 

Financial 
provision has 
been made to 
cover the risk of 
current appeals, 
collection rates 
and growth

3 4

This risk remains the 
same since it's 
previous update due 
to no change in the 
situation. The NHS 
appeal is still ongoing 
and the risk may be 
altered based on the 
outcome of this.

        

P
age 96



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Critical 
breach of ICT 
security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing frequency 
at present. Ransom 
and theft specialists 
are targeting banking 
details and personal 
information, as with 
all other government 
systems and private 
companies 

There is a 
comprehensive 
suite of protection 
measures in 
place including 
email filtering, 
web filtering, 
antivirus and 
windows updates 
which help to 
protect from 
viruses

4 3

PSPS on behalf of its 
clients continues its 
vigilance. 

The introduction of a 
dedicated Security 
Analyst role has given 
PSPS the resource to 
develop new 
standards and 
processes to combat 
the increasing risk of 
cyber attacks and be 
far more proactive in 

P
age 97



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

the management of 
security threats 
internally and 
externally.

Whilst a security 
breach will always be 
a possibility in today's 
environment, SHDC 
have a level of 
defence in depth 
which operates levels 
of security from the 
perimeter to the end 
user devices.  It 
should be confident of 
the considerable 
investment and 
enhancements made 
in this area over 
previous years but 
must be cognisant of 
the ongoing role 
required of staff and 
Members.  The impact 
of any such breach will 
always remain 
high/critical due to the 
possible disruption to 
statutory services.

P
age 98



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Impact of 
County 
Council 
Budget 
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This will 
potentially impact on 
resident wellbeing. 

Ensure that Place 
directorate are 
involved early in 
conversations to 
represent the 
council and its 
residents

3 3

There is no change to 
this risk or likelihood 
due to no further 
update from county 
council. This is due 
linked to business 
rates review and the 
local government 
settlement (both of 
which remain in the 
same place as the last 
update). When an 
update is available, 
this risk will be altered 
to reflect any changes.

P
age 99



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Contracts 
Monitoring

This risk covers the 
councils monitoring 
of contracts with 
external partners to 
ensure arrangements 
are financially secure 
and performing

.        Regular 
monitoring of 
contracts
.        Regular 
communication 
with external 
partners and 
stakeholders
Keep up to date 
with external 
changes with 
partners

3 3

The status for this risk 
remains the same, 
there have been no 
incidents to note with 
existing contracted 
suppliers or service 
providers which the 
team continues to 
monitor closely.

In addition, the service 
continues to maintain 
a watching brief in 

P
age 100



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

relation to Brexit 
developments and 
what impact this may 
have on our 
contracted supplier 
supply chains.

Emerging 
government 
policy

Risk is in relation to 
the Council’s ability 
to respond to 
emerging 
government policies 
and strategies and 
the implications they 
might have on 
organisational 
service delivery 
models and budget 
position. This is 
includes but is not 
limited to policy 
around local 
industrial strategies, 
environmental policy, 
Domestic Abuse Bill, 
emerging waste 
strategies and exiting 
the European Union. 

 3 3

Future and proposed 
policies fall under the 
watching brief of the 
council’s senior policy 
advisor. As a result, 
further risks will be 
added where 
appropriate. 

PSPS Failure 
to deliver 
core 
services

PSPS Failure to 
deliver core services 
- 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits

Number of 
Governance 
processes in 
place including 
monitoring of 
performance in 
performance, risk 

4 2

The PSPS Client lead 
is now Mark Stinson 
(Executive Manager 
Governance) following 
on from the retirement 
of the previous client 
lead Phil Adams, At 

P
age 101



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

and audit baord. 
CPBS also has 
its own board 
with governance.

this time there are no 
changes to this risk to 
highlight but as regular 
meetings take place 
and the new client 
leads understanding of 
the PSPS service 
provision develops 
they will review this 
risk further to highlight 
any issues etc. if 
appropriate.P

age 102



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Failure to 
deliver the 
council's 
Corporate 
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council 
suffering reputational 
damage and a failure 
to deliver priorities to 
residents. 

Corporate 
Delivery Plan 
sets out how to 
acheive corporate 
plan and this is 
under pinned by 
individual service 
plans and these 
are monitored at 
Perfromance, 
Risk & Audit 
Board monthly

2 3

The Change, 
innovation and 
performance team are 
currently reviewing the 
corporate delivery plan 
with all services and 
the executive manager 
team, the main 
purpose of this work is 
to track progress on 
the actions that sit 
within the corporate 
plan. Once complete, 
this work will show 
which areas of the 
corporate plan we are 
on track to deliver and 
which areas are 
behind target or work 
is required for further 
improvement. Due to 
this work currently 
underway the risk has 
been raised slightly in 
likelihood as until this 
is complete we will not 
have a clear image as 

P
age 103



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

to which objectives will 
be delivered.

Failure to 
maximise 
trading 
opportunities

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities 
could result in lack of 
commercial 
exploitation of assets 
or income from 
trading arms 

Governance is in 
place for MTFP 
through EMT, 
finance board 
and Performance 
Risk and Audit 
Board which 
monitor the work 

3 2

There is no further 
update to this risk, as 
EHTC remain in the 
same position as the 
previous update. 

        

P
age 104



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

towards 
maximising 
trading
opportunities

P
age 105



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Staff 
recruitment 
and retention 
at all levels 
within the 
organisation

Staff recruitment and 
retention issues 
could undermine the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations though 
loss of experience 
and knowledge 

The mitigation for 
key senior posts 
that are vacant or 
serving their 
notice period will 
be to start 
recruitment and 
find suitable 
interim cover.  

3 2

Risk remains the 
same.  Quarter 2 has 
seen an increase in 
turnover in 
comparison to no 
leavers in Quarter 1.  
Reasons for leaving 
have been varied from 
retirements to 
resignations for 
personal reasons.  
This has been across 
a number of services.

P
age 106



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Failure to 
effectively 
implement 
corporate 
business 
continuity 
plan

Failure could lead to 
an impact on delivery 
of services, loss of IT 
systems, ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

Working jointly 
with County to 
have business 
continuity post. 
Each team has a 
plan reviewed 
annually

3 2

No changes to 
highlight for this 
quarter, delay in 
training is linked to the 
uncertainty of Brexit 
and it is anticipated to 
pick up once Brexit 
becomes clearer, with 
that in mind essential 
training has been 
delivered where 
appropriate to ensure 
this risk is still 
mitigated against.

P
age 107



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Failure to 
deliver 
financial & 
non-financial 
outcomes of 
the approved 
Welland 
Homes 

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes of 
the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal, 
reputational and 

Mitigations as 
follows;
• Revised 
governance 
including 
strengthened 
terms of 

3 2

Welland Homes now 
owns 35 homes 
following the 
acquisition of an 
additional five houses 
at Bentley Court 
Spalding in August 
2019.  The business 

P
age 108



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

business 
plan

Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the 
organsation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both 
the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

reference. 
• Improved 
communication 
on Council 
policies to the 
WH Board. 
• Increased 
operational 
capability and 
capacity within 
Council to 
support future 
programmes and 
WH Board of 
Directors. 
• Permanent 
Housing 
Development 
programme 
manager 
• Positive Audit 
• Established 
methodology for 
assessing 
schemes 

plan is seeking to 
have 60 homes in 
ownership by March 
2022 and this 
aspiration is 
achievable.

Officers are currently 
negotiating to acquire 
a further three 
properties from a local 
developer.

An exercise is 
underway to 
understand how 
schemes perform 
financially in 
comparison to the 
business case 
projections.  This will 
be used to inform 
future business cases 
for new schemes.

 

 

 

P
age 109



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

General Data 
Protection 
Regulation 
Implementati
on

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk 
that the council will 
not manage its data 
appropriately and in 
line with the new 
regulations.

Monthly meetings 
of the statutory 
information group 
have highlighted 
areas, which 
need to be 
addressed, and 
training was 
delivered in 
September for 
managers and 
proposed service 
Data Protection 
leads.

3 2

IGO has reviewed the 
risk and discussed 
with DPO.  It is felt that 
the risk score remains 
accurate.  The GDPR 
Project plan is 
progressing well and 
is continually updated 
with new issues for 
consideration. 

The comparison chart 
shows that the original 
target set has been 
met.  A further GDPR 
audit is due to take 
place at the end of 
2019.  Following this 
audit we will review 
new targets and 
consider whether the 
risk score may be 
adjusted further.

P
age 110



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

Failure to 
deliver Local 
Plan and its 
Delivery Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary of 
State intervention. 
there is also a new 
risk emerging due to 
New Homes Bonus. 

Dedicated senior 
officer and EMT 
support to deliver 
the local plan

1 1

The Executive 
Manager for Growth 
and the Planning 
Manager have 
reviewed this risk and 
deemed it as complete 
in terms of target due 
to the Local Plan 
being adopted at a 
meeting of the South 
East Lincolnshire 
Local Plan Joint 
Committee on 8th 

P
age 111



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

March. As the Local 
Plan has been  
adopted the risk rating 
has been downgraded 
to its lowest scoring. It 
is proposed for Q3 
that a new risk takes 
supersedes this risk 
which will be focused 
on the failure to 
maintain a 5 year land 
supply and to meet the 
housing delivery test, 
The HDT works by 
comparing how many 
homes have been 
delivered over the 
previous three years 
to the number of 
homes required. 
Therefore monitoring 
these areas in this 
new risk going forward 
will ensure any issues 
within the now 
adopted local plan and 
its 5 year land supply 
are highlighted 
accordingly.

P
age 112



Title Description Controls/ 
Mitigation

Current Risk 
Score

Trend (last 
qtr)

Historical 
Assessments (last 
quarter at the top)

Impact Likelihood Target Risk 
Matrix Latest Note

 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 13.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	5. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Progress report on IA activity 201920 (003)

	6. Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations
	SHDC Follow Up on IA recs 1920

	7. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment
	8. Mid term Treasury Report 2019/20
	Appendix A Mid Term Treasury Report 2019/20
	Appendix B Mid Term Treasury Report 2019/20

	9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A

	10. Quarter 2 2019-20 Risk Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 2 2019-20 Risk Report

	13. Quarter 2 2019-20 Risk Report

